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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended: December 31, 2012

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from  to

Commission file number: 000-54335

InspireMD, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 26-212383¢
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)

4 Menorat Hamaor St.
Tel Aviv, Israel 67448
(Address of principal executive offices)
(Zip Code)

972-3-691-7691
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area yode

Indicate by check mark whether registrant (1) filad fll reports required to be filed by Sectiondt3.5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayssX¥l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). ¥ds No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @aocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated fitaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filed Accelerated filelx]

Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compard
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). Yedd No

The number of shares of the registrant's commockst$0.0001 par value, outstanding as of Februap43: 18,604,709.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
INSPIREMD, INC.
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
December 31, 2012
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

December 31 June 30,
2012 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 543 $ 10,28
Restricted cas 93 37
Accounts receivable
Trade, ne 1,27: 1,82¢
Other 212 264
Prepaid expenst 94 93
Inventory:
On hanc 1,977 1,74«
On consignment 20 63
Total current assets 9,107 14,30¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation and amortize 47¢ 462
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co 77€ 961
Funds in respect of employees rights upon retirel 33t 282
Royalties buyout 90&
Total other non-current assets 2,01¢ 1,24
Total assets $ 11,597 $ 16,01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

December 31 June 30,
2012 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrue
Trade $ 501 $ 441
Other 2,37¢ 2,92t
Advanced payment from custom 184 174
Deferred revenue 10 1C
Convertible loan 6,461
Total current liabilities 9,53: 3,55(
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 451 354
Convertible loar 5,01¢
Contingently redeemable warrants 1,41( 1,70¢
Total long-term liabilities 1,861 7,07¢
Total liabilities 11,39: 10,62¢
EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 128)00Ghares authorized; 18,026,680 and
17,040,040 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2012 and June 30, 2012, respecti\ 2 2
Additional paic-in capital 53,34¢ 49,10¢
Accumulated deficit (53,14)) (43,72)
Total equity 204 5,38¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 11,597 $ 16,01

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and @eestata)

Three months endec
December 31,

Six months endec
December 31,

2012 2011 2012 2011

REVENUES $ 1,35 $ 1,29: $ 1,85¢ $ 3,27¢
COST OF REVENUES 547 671 77 1,47:
GROSS PROFIT 802 621 1,08: 1,80¢
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Royalties buyout expens 91¢ 91¢

Other research and development expe 1,25¢ 834 2,20z 1,381

Selling and marketin 1,20¢ 62€ 1,60¢ 92¢

General and administrative 1,78¢ 7,39¢ 4,001 9,88¢

Total operating expenses 5,16¢ 8,85¢ 8,72¢ 12,19!
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (4,36¢€) (8,237) (7,647 (10,38
FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME), net:

Expenses (income) related to revaluation of Coeiitly

redeemable warrants, r (3,569) (29¢)
Expenses related to interest on convertible loahadiher financia
expenses 1,081 39 2,02¢ 147

LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES (1,87¢) (8,276) (9,377) (10,53¢)
TAX EXPENSES 42 (43 48 (18
NET LOSS $ (1,920 $ (8,239 $ (9,420 $ (10,516
NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and diluted $ (0.1 $ (0.49 $ (059 $ (0.64)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF

COMMON STOCK USED IN COMPUTING NET LOSS PER

SHARE - basic and diluted 17,727,81 16,674,35 17,401,02 16,374,63

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

6 months endec
December 31,

2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (9,42¢ $ (10,51¢)
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to ashaused in operating activiti¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 95 51
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent 97 12
Financial expenses (incom 1,241 24¢
Royalties buyou 91¢
Shar+-based compensation expen 1,431 8,611
Loss (gains) on amounts funded in respect of eng@aights upon retirement, r 3 5
Changes in operating asset and liability ite
Increase in prepaid expen: (@D} Q)
Decrease (increase) in trade receiva 551 (1,670
Decrease in other receivab 52 53
Decrease (increase) in inventory on consignr 43 (28)
Increase in inventory on hai (2393 (590
Increase (decrease) in trade paya 60 (32)
Decrease in other payables and advance paymentcinstomers (624) (33¢)
Net cash used in operating activities (5,799 (4,219
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢ (56) 252
Purchase of property, plant and equipr (87) (97
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 12
Amounts funded in respect of employee rights ugdinament (50) (10)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (199) 157
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Exercise of options and warrat 1,04¢ 1,50(
Repayment of long-term loan (187)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,04¢ 1,31:
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 92 (229
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,857 (2,976
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F THE PERIOD 10,28¢ 8,07(
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD $ 5,43 $ 5,09¢
Purchasing of property, plant and equipment onitegd in consideration of share-based payme $ 62
Royalties buyout in consideration of shares and/erai $ 93C

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theondensed consolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc. (formerly Saguaro Resources, Ina.pelaware corporation (the “Companyias formed on February 29, 20
On March 28, 2011, the Company changed its nanmspreMD, Inc. in connection with a share exchatrgasaction between {
Company, InspireMD Ltd., a limited company incorgied under the laws of the State of Israel in ARBiD5, and the sharehold
of InspireMD Ltd.

On December 19, 2012, the Company filed with ther&ary of State of the State of Delaware a Cedi& of Amendment to t
Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of mm@tion to effect a one-fdour reverse stock split of its common stock
“Reverse Stock Split")which decreased the number of issued and outstgrstiares of common stock from approximately
million shares to approximately 18.0 million sharéee Company authorized common stock was not affected by tbeeR:
Stock Split. All related share and per share dateelbeen retroactively applied to the financialesteents and their related notes
all periods presented.

The Company has had recurring losses and negaisfe ftows from operating activities and has sigaifit future commitmen
For the six months ended December 31, 2012, thep@nynhad losses of approximately $9.4 million aadative cash flows fro
operating activities of approximately $5.8 milliocfhe Companys management believes that its financial resouasesf Decemb
31, 2012 should enable it to continue funding tegative cash flows from operating activities thhdoube three months enc
September 30, 2013. Furthermore, commencing Oct?b&8, the Company’s senior secured convertiblesuieipes (the 2012
Convertible Debentures”) are subject to a kontingent redemption option that could require @menpany to make a paymen
$13.3 million, including accrued interest. Since ompany expects to continue incurring negatiah dlwws from operations a
in light of the cash requirement in connection wifth 2012 Convertible Debentures, there is suliatatdubt about the Comparsy’
ability to continue operating as a going concerhede financial statements include no adjustmenthefvalues of assets ¢
liabilities and the classification thereof, if artlgat will apply if the Company is unable to comgnoperating as a going concern.

The Company will need to raise further capital@ns future point in time, through the sale of add#l equity securities or de
The Company’s future capital requirements and ttheqaacy of the Comparg/’available funds will depend on many fact
including the Company’s ability to successfully aosrcialize the Company’s MGuartM products, development of futt
products, competing technological and market deraknts, and the need to enter into collaboratioitls @ther companies
acquire other companies or technologies to enhancemplement the Comparsyproduct offerings. However, the Company
be unable to raise sufficient additional capitalewtlthe Company needs it or with favorable terms #rms of any securiti
issued by the Company in future financings may loeenfiavorable to new investors, and may includdéepesces, superior voti
rights and the issuance of warrants or other devivasecurities, which may have a further diluteffect on the holders of t
Companys securities then outstanding. If the Company &bileto obtain adequate funds on reasonable ténms<Zompany wi
need to curtail operations significantly, includipgssibly postponing or halting the Company’s UniBtates of America (“U.9.”
Food and Drug Administration clinical trials or erihg into financing agreements with unattracteents.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finanda&tkements have been prepared on the same bagis asrual consolidat
financial statements. In the opinion of managemthd, financial statements reflect all adjustmentsich include only norm
recurring adjustments, necessary to present fdhty financial position and results of operationstié Company. The
consolidated financial statements and notes themetaunaudited and should be read in conjunctidh thie Company audite
financial statements for the year ended June 302,28s found in the Company’s amended TransitiopoReon Form 1KT/A,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissionJanuary 3, 2013. The balance sheet for June(3@, was derived from t|
Companys$ audited financial statements for the year endet B0, 2012. The results of operations for thensonths ende
December 31, 2012 are not necessarily indicativesilts that could be expected for the entireafigear.

NOTE 3- EQUITY:

On August 1, 2012, the Company issued a consuifatitins with certain market conditions to purcha8#00 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $4.72 per share;ltdsng price of the common stock on the date ahgr

On August 27, 2012, the Company issued optionsitohase 60,871 shares of common stock at an exgmiee of $5.80 per
share, the closing price of the common stock ord#ie of grant, to a consultant who was an immed&hily member of the
Company’s CEO at the time of grant.

On August 27, 2012, the Company extended the tén option to purchase 30,435 shares of commark gteviously granted to
a consultant who was an immediate family membéheiCompany’s CEO at the time of the extensionlolahg the extension,
the options can be exercised until September 304.20

On October 20, 2012, the Company issued 215,00@sloh common stock to pursuant to an agreemehtaditensor (See Note 9
(@)).

During the six months ended December 31, 2012Cthvapany issued a total of 771,640 shares of constamk in connection wi
the exercise of 771,640 options and warrants. Térefgany received aggregate cash proceeds equabtoxapately $1 million in
connection with such exercises.

On December 21, 2012, the Company amended its UlalBkan to increase the total number of shareoofmon stock issuable
under such plan by 1.25 million shares and to pettimei awarding of incentive stock options pursuarthe U.S. portion of the pla

NOTE 4- EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computediiging the net loss for the period by the weaghtiverage number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Theutation of diluted net loss per share excludesml shares of common
stock, as the effect is anti-dilutive. Potentiadugts of common stock are comprised of incremehtales of common stock issuable
upon the exercise of stock options, warrants amdextible loans.

For the six month periods ended December 31, 2882811, all shares of common stock underlyingtantiing options, warran
and convertible loans have been excluded from dl®utation of the diluted loss per share sincerteffect was anti-dilutive. The
total number of shares of common stcok relatedutstanding options, warrants and convertible Idhaswere excluded from the
calculations of diluted loss per share were 7,382 #&nd 5,406,613 for the six month periods endezkBer 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

F-7




INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT:

a.

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at FaiValue.

The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie measurements for financial assets and liesiliFair value is based
on the price that would be received to sell antamspaid to transfer a liability in an orderly tisaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The accounting standard establishes a fair vakiatdhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevaiguts used to measure
fair value into three broad levels, which are dibsct below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active m@rkieat are accessible at the measurement daésdets or liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityLvel 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inmttguoted on active markets, but corroboratethbiket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when litttacmmarket data is available. The fair value highg gives the lowest
priority to Level 3 inputs.

The following table summarizes the balances fos¢hiinancial liabilities where fair value measuretseare estimated
utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 inputs:

December 31 June 30
Level 2012 2012
($ in thousands)
2012 Warrants at fair valt 2% 1,41C $ 1,70¢
Embedded derivative 3 40 49
$ 1,450 $ 1,75¢

The following table summarizes the activity for skdinancial liabilities where fair value measuratseare estimated utilizir
Level 3 inputs:

Embedded
Derivative
($ in thousands)

Balance as of July 1, 201 $ 49
Losses included in earnings - financial expensex , (9)
Balance as of December 31, 20: $ 40

Level 3 liabilities include an embedded derivatigkated to the Company’s 2012 Convertible Debestufae Company
values the Level 3 embedded derivative using arnially developed valuation model, whose inputtuithe recovery rates,
credit spreads, stock prices, and volatilitiesjescribed below.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT (continued):
The fair value of the warrants included in Levés$ 2stimated using the Black Scholes model.
In calculating the fair value of warrants at Decem®1, 2012, the Company used the following assiomgtexpected term «
4.26 years; expected volatility of 70.64%; riskefiaterest rate of 0.59%; and dividend yield of 0%.
b. Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured aFair Value Method

The carrying amounts of financial instruments ided in working capital approximate their fair vakither because these
amounts are presented at fair value or due toelagively short-term maturities of such instrumetitsneasured at fair value
in the financial statements, these financial imsnts would be classified as Level 3 in the falugaierarchy. The carrying
amount of the Company’s other financial long-teseeds approximate their fair value.
The fair value of the Company’s 2012 ConvertibldBrtures approximates the carrying amount (aftasidering the
beneficial conversion feature). If measured atyalue in the financial statements, these finarinstruments would be
classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

NOTE 6 - INVENTORY ON HAND:

December 31 June 30,
2012 2012
($ in thousands)

Finished good $ 37¢ 9 47¢
Work in proces: 1,48¢ 1,11¢
Raw materials and supplies 11F 15C

$ 1977 $ 1,744

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS - OTHER:

December 31 June 30,
2012 2012
($ in thousands)

Employees and employee institutic $ 394 $ 43¢
Accrued vacation and recreation f 27¢ 272
Accrued clinical trial expenst 552 607
Provision for sales commissio 15¢& 194
Accrued expense 841 1,19
Due to government institutior 22
Provision for return: 53 13¢
Taxes payable 10z 56

$ 2,37¢ $ 2,92t
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME), NET:

Three months ended Six months ended
December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
(% in thousands) ($ in thousands)
Bank commission $ 8 $ 8 17 $ 16
Interest incom (6) (11 (15) (32
Exchange rate differenc (81) 32 (75) 13¢
Interest expense (including debt issuance ci 1,12( 10 2,10¢ 25
Change in fair value of warrants and embedded dtvies (3,529 (30E)

$ (2,489 $ 39 $ 1,73C $ 147

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTIES:

On July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, InspifeMd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compangjered into a consultancy
agreement (the “First Consultancy Agreement”) witnember of the immediate family of the Compangtsrfer CEO at the time,
pursuant to which the consultant was to providesabnsulting services. Pursuant to the agreertientonsultant was entitled tc
fixed fee of $625 (2,500 NIS) for each full workidgy and a bonus of up to $10,000 (40,000 NIS) uperachievement of set
objectives. The First Consultancy Agreement wamitesited on September 30, 2012.

On August 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered int@ased consultancy agreement (the “Second ConsyltAgreement”) with this
consultant, pursuant to which the consultant igledtto options to purchase 60,871 shares of comstack at an exercise price of
$5.80 per share. The revised agreement also extehdeerm of options to purchase 30,435 sharesmimon stock that were
scheduled to expire upon the termination of thetFonsultancy Agreement to September 2014.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

a. Commitment

In March 2010, the Company entered into a licergseaanent to use a stent design (“MGuard Prithg). Pursuant to the
agreement, the licensor is entitled to receive ltgyeayments of 7% of net sales outside the UnBates and, for sales within

the United States, royalty payments as follows:of%et sales for the first $10,000,000 of net sales$ 10% of net sales for
net sales exceeding $10,000,0
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 10 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (co  ntinued):

On October 20, 2012, the Company, InspireMD Ltdl #ire licensor entered into the First Amendmerttitense Agreement,
which amended the license agreement described aBavguant to the amendment, amongst other thingdicensor agreed
to reduce the royalty owed with respect to saldgGluard PrimeTM to 2.9% of all net sales both iesahd outside the U.S.
in exchange for (i) InspireMD Ltd. waiving $85,000regulatory fees for the CE Mark that are owedhwylicensor to
InspireMD Ltd., (ii) InspireMD Ltd. making full pagent of royalties in the amount of $205,587 duth&licensor as of
September 30, 2012 and (iii) 215,000 shares of€tmapany’s common stock, that were valued at theirdpprice of the
common stock on October 19, 2012 at $8.20 per shaetotal amount paid to the licensor was vakie$il,848,000,
inclusive of the shares issued as well as the $85)@iver, and was allocated as follows: $930,088 allocated to royalties
buyout and $918,000 was allocated to “researctdandlopmentexpenses based on the MGuard PrimeTM registratédos
in the various territories. The royalties buyoull we amortized over the estimated useful livethefroyalties buyout to “Cost
of Revenue” in the Consolidated Statements of Operati

b. Litigation

In February 2011, a third party threatened to skeekages from the Company in connection with ceftaders’ fees that it
claimed were owed. The claimant is seeking appratefg $1 million. To date, no lawsuit has beendfitend the Company h
not accrued an expense in connection with thisenatcause the Company’s management, after comgjdbe views of its
legal counsel as well as other factors, believasdHoss to the Company is neither probable naniamount or range of loss
that is estimable.

In February 2011, a service provider filed a claigainst the Company for $327,000 in the Magistsa®surt in Tel Aviv,
claiming a future success fee and commission feis@sice in finding the Company’s distributor iraBt. The Company’s
management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, recorded aipi@v of $327,000 in the
financial statements in the first quarter of 20THe related expense has been recorded to “Gematadministrative” within
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. On @ct®h2011, the Company filed a counter claim agjaime plaintiff in the
amount of $29,000. Following the first court eviderhearing held on January 02013, the parties reached a settlement
agreement which provides that in consideratiorhefrhutual waiver by the parties of all their claiagginst each other and
their shareholders, officers and employees, theg@om shall pay to the plaintiff $50,000. Accordinghs of December 31,
2012, the provision was modified to $50,000.

In August 2011, a former senior employee submitbetthe Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim ags the Company for
(i) compensation of $118,000 and (ii) a declaratofing that he is entitled to exercise 121,744yt to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise prig®dio4 per share, of which, 20,290 options weredisgtuted by the
Company. On October 21, 2012, the former senior@yep exercised 20,290 options. After considerirg\iews of its legal
counsel as well as other factors, the Company’sag@ment believes that a loss to the Company ikargirobable nor in an
amount or range of loss that is estimable.

In November 2011, a former service provider of IredD Ltd. filed a claim with the Magistrate Coumnt Tel Aviv against thi
Company, InspireMD Ltd. and the Company’s formerdRtent and former CEO for a declaratory ruling this entitled to
convert options to purchase 13,650 of InspireMD.’ktdrdinary shares at an exercise price of $3déi7share into options to
purchase 27,696 shares of the Company’s commok at@n exercise price of $1.80 per share, andnoeart options to
purchase 4,816 of InspireMD Ltd.’s ordinary shaatan exercise price of $10 per share into optioqmirchase 9,772 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @fi.92 per share. On July 30, 2012, the partdd & mediation which
resulted in a settlement agreement, pursuant tohnthie Company paid $7,000 plus value added taxéeetplaintiff and the
plaintiff waived all of his claims to any optionedhagreed to the irrevocable dismissal of the alm@grtioned claim. On
August 5, 2012, the court approved the settlemedtdismissed the claim.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 10 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (co  ntinued):

In December 2011, a statement of claim againsCibmapany was submitted by an alleged finder of then@any, regardir
options to purchase 146,089 shares of the Compammyyhmon stock. The Company filed its defenseimdhse on March 1
2012. Mediation procedures have not resulted iretesnent agreement between the parties. A couatitige to hear tk
evidences in this case is set for February 27, 28f8r considering the views of its legal counaslwell as other factorthe
Companys management believes that a loss to the Compangitiser probable nor in an amount or range of thss i
estimable.

In July 2012, a purported assignee of options ispieMD Ltd. submitted a statement of claim agaitg Compan
InspireMD Ltd., and the Comparg/former CEO and former President for a declaratorgg enforcement order that it
entitled to options to purchase 83,637 shares®fbmpanys common stock at an exercise price of $0.76 parest firs
hearing of this claim was set for February 21, 20%8er considering the views of its legal counaslwell as other factors,
Companys management believes that a loss to the Compangitiser probable nor in an amount or range of tbss it
estimable.

In December 2012, a former service provider of D GmbH filed a claim with the Labor Court in Boos Aires
Argentina in the amount of $193,378 plus inter€86 (n dollars or 18.5% in pesos), social benefitgal expenses and ft
(25% of the award) against InspireMD Ltd. and InsgiD GmbH. The Compang’management, after considering the v
of its legal counsel as well as other factors, réed a provision of $250,000 in the financial staets for the quarter enc
December 31, 2012. The related expense has beendeelcto “General and administrativetithin the Consolidate
Statements of Operations. The Companyianagement estimates that the ultimate resolefighis matter could result ir
loss of up to $80,000 in excess of the amount &ctru

In December 2012, the State of Israel issued aimaintomplaint to InspireMD Ltd., the Compasyformer CEO, formq
President, and Vice President of Research and Dewent, alleging that the Company failed to opeitgeproductiol
facilities under an appropriate business license.January 31, 2013, the Company received the hasilieense and
currently seeking a dismissal of the criminal coaml. The Company does not expect that this adtjothe State of Israel w
result in any material liability to either the Coamy or the named individuals.

c. Liens and pledges

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had fixedsleggregating $93,000 to bank Mizrahi and bank Lieamonnection
with the Company’s credit cards.

The Company’s obligations under the 2012 Convertibdbentures are secured by a first priority péefibsecurity interest in

all of the assets and properties of the CompanyresmreMD Ltd., including the stock of InspireMOd. and InspireMD
GmbH.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 11 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURE:
The Company operates in one reportable segment.
Disaggregated financial data is provided belowadisws:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bas#tedocation of the customers. The following isummary of revenues
geographic areas:

3 months endec 6 months endec
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
($ in thousands) ($ in thousands)
India $ 272 $ 272

Spain 18¢ 38 28¢ 27C
Brazil 17¢€ 194 181 39¢
Russia 98 231 12t 36C
Israel 40 251 11t 35E
Poland 3 194 3 194
Other 572 384 874 1,701
$ 1,35C $ 1,292 $ 1,85¢ $ 3,27¢

The following is a summary of revenues by principagtomers:

3 months ended 6 months ended
December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011

Customer A 20% 15%

Customer B 14% 3% 16% 8%
Customer C 13% 15% 10% 12%
Customer D 7% 18% 7% 11%
Customer E 3% 19% 6% 11%
Customer F 15% 6%

All tangible lon¢-lived assets are located in Isre
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

1) On January 3, 2013, the Company's CEO at the tésigned as CEO (the "Former CEQ"). The FormeD @il continue t
serve as a member of the Companlydard of directors. In accordance with the teofres Separation Agreement and Release
Company will continue to pay the Former CEO $21,&63ix months.

On January 3, 2013 and in connection with the Foi@t0’s resignation, the Company appointed a ne® CE

In connection with the appointment of the new CH@ Company entered into an Employment Agreeméiet ‘tEmploymen
Agreement”) with the new CEO. The Employment Agreement has ratiali term that ends on January 1, 2016 and
automatically renew for additional oyear periods on January 1, 2016 and on each Jafuhsreafter unless either party gi
the other party written notice of its election tmextend such employment at least six months poidine next January 1 rene
date. If a change in control occurs when less tiwam full years remain in the initial term or durirapy renewal term, tl
Employment Agreement will automatically be extendedtwo years from the change in control date wiiltiterminate on th
second anniversary of the change in control date.

Under the Employment Agreement, the new CEO igledtio an annual base salary of at least $450,806h amount may
reduced only as part of an overall cost reductioogram that affects all senior executives of thean@any and does r
disproportionately affect him, so long as such otidns do not reduce the base salary to a ratashess than 90% of the amo
set forth above (or 90% of the amount to whichai$ lbeen increased). The base salary will be redemaually by the board 1
increase as part of its annual compensation revién.new CEO is also eligible to receive an antoalus of at least $275,C
upon the achievement of reasonable target objectrel performance goals, to be determined by tledbof directors. |
accordance with the Employment Agreement, on Jar8ia2013, the Company granted the new CEO a ndifigdastock optiol
to purchase 525,927 shares of the Compmamgpmmon stock, made pursuant to a NonqualifiedkS@ption Agreement,
incentive stock option to purchase 74,073 shardb®fCompanys common stock, made pursuant to an Incentive Stytior
Agreement, and 400,000 shares of restricted steklch are subject to forfeiture until the vestirfigsach shares, made purst
to a Restricted Stock Award Agreement. The optibage an exercise price of $4.05, which was the rfarket value of tf
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Bla¢haptions and the restricted stock are subjeatttoeeyear vesting peric
subject to the new CEQ's continued service withGbepany, with one-thirtgixth (1/36th) of such awards vesting each mq
On or before December 31 of each calendar yeaméle CEO will be eligible to receive an additiogahnt of equity awar
equal, in the aggregate, to up to 0.5% of the Cayijgaactual outstanding shares of common stock oddte of grant, provide
that the actual amount of the grant will be basedhie achievement of certain performance objectasesstablished by the bo:
in its reasonable discretion, for each such caleyear.

If, during the term of the Employment Agreemeng ttew CEO's employment is terminated upon certamlitions as stipulatt
in the agreement, the new CEO will be entitledetceive, in addition to other unpaid amounts oweHbito (e.g., for base sal:
and accrued vacation): (i) the pro rata amountngfl@onus for the fiscal year of such terminatioss(aming full achievement
all applicable goals under the bonus plan) thaivbeld have received had his employment not beeniteted; (ii) a ondime
lump sum severance payment equal to 200% of his &aary; (i) vesting of 50% of all unvested d#taptions, restricted stoc
stock appreciation rights or similar stock basethts, and lapse of any forfeiture included in stetricted or other stock grar
(iv) an extension of the term of any outstandiragktoptions or stock appreciation rights until dzelier of (a) two (2) years frc
the date of termination, or (b) the latest data #ach stock option or stock appreciation right ldootherwise expire by i
original terms; (v) to the fullest extent permittbg the Company’s theodrrent benefit plans, continuation of health, dg
vision and life insurance coverage; and (vi) a gasyment of $35,000, which the new CEO may usefecutive outplaceme
services or an education program.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued):

In addition, the new CEO has no specific righta@artinate the Employment Agreement or right to agyesance payments
other benefits solely as a result of a change itrob However, if within 24 months following a alge in control, (a) the ne
CEO terminates his employment for good reasonpptie Company terminates his employment withouiseathe lump su
severance payment to which he is entitled willl@éased from 200% of his base salary to 250%sbase salary and all st
options, restricted stock units, stock appreciatigts or similar stoclkased rights granted to him will vest in full ane
immediately exercisable and any risk of forfeituneluded in restricted or other stock grants prasip made to him wi
immediately lapse.

In calculating the fair value of the above optitims Company used the following assumptions: dividgeld of 0% and expect
term of 5.04-6.5 years; expected volatility of 88:50.3%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.72%-1.07%

The fair value of the above 525,927 and 74,073o0gti using the Black-Scholes optiprieing model, was approximately $1
million.

The fair value of the above 400,000 restricted esharas approximately $1.62 million.

2) On January 8, 2013, due to the failure of thenfanys common stock to be listed on a national secaritiechange on
before December 31, 2012, the Company issued 19&0ares of common stock to the purchasers, or dlssignees, unde
Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of MarclR@Ill as amended, between the Company and thbgsers thereund
Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreementheirevent that the Compasytommon stock was not listed on a nati
securities exchange on or before December 31, 2082Company was required to issue the purchasetsrithe Securitit
Purchase Agreement additional shares of commork stqual to 10% of the number of shares of commoiksbriginally
acquired by each such purchaser under the Sesupitichase Agreement.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should B&ad in conjunction with tt
accompanying condensed consolidated financial stai#s and related notes included elsewhere inQhirterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencehis Form 10-Q to the “Company,” “InspireMD,” “wg “our” and “us” refer tc
InspireMD, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and itsbsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “fordeémoking statementsyvhich include information relating to future everftsture

financial performance, strategies, expectationsypmiitive environment and regulation. Words sucHray,” “should,” “could,” “would,”

“predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “ditipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believe’s “estimates,”and similar expressions,

well as statements in future tense, identify foxvimoking statements. Forwatdeking statements should not be read as a guaraftiiture
performance or results and will probably not beusate indications of when such performance or teswill be achieved. Forwaridoking
statements are based on information we have whasethtatements are made or our good faith belief éisat time with respect to futt
events, and are subject to risks and uncertaittigscould cause actual performance or resultsfter dnaterially from those expressed ir
suggested by the forward-looking statements. Ingmbifiactors that could cause such differences dgslbut are not limited to:

« our history of recurring losses and negative céslvs from operating activities, significant futucemmitments and the uncertai
regarding the adequacy of our liquidity to pursue @mplete business objectivi

« our ability to complete clinical trials as anticipd and obtain and maintain regulatory approval®fw products;
« our ability to adequately protect our intellectpabperty;
« disputes over ownership of intellectual property;

« our dependence on a single manufacturing facilitgt aur ability to comply with stringent manufacthgi quality standards and
increase production as necess:i

« the risk that the data collected from our curremd planned clinical trials may not be sufficientdemonstrate that the MGuar«
technology is an attractive alternative to othecpdures and produc

« intense competition in our industry, with compastdaving substantially greater financial, techgalal, research and developm:
regulatory and clinical, manufacturing, marketimgl @ales, distribution and personnel resourceswleato;

- entry of new competitors and products and potetdiztinological obsolescence of our products;
« loss of a key customer or supplier;

« technical problems with our research and produatisptential product liability claims;

« adverse economic conditions;

« adverse federal, state and local government ragajah the United States, Europe or Israel;

« price increases for supplies and components;

- inability to carry out research, development anchicercialization plans; and

« loss or retirement of key executives and reseasintists.

For a discussion of these and other risks thaterétaour business and investing in our commonkstgau should carefully review t
risks and uncertainties described under the hed®iag Il — Item 1A. Risk Factors” and elsewherehis Quarterly Report on Form ID-anc
in our Transition Report on Form 10-KT for the swonth period ended June 30, 2012 (the “Transitiepd®”), and those described from ti
to time in our future reports filed with the Seti@#s and Exchange Commission. The forwiking statements contained in this Quart
Report on Form 1@ are expressly qualified in their entirety by teeutionary statement. We do not undertake anygatiin to publicl
update any forwartboking statement to reflect events or circumstarmier the date on which any such statement isenoado reflect th
occurrence of unanticipated events.

Overview

We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagns platform technolog
MGuard. MGuard provides embolic protection in stegtprocedures by placing a micron mesh sleeve avetent. Our initial products



marketed for use mainly in patients with acute narg syndromes, notably acute myocardial infarctiogart attack) and saphen
vein graft coronary interventions (bypass surgery).




Recent Developments

On December 19, 2012, we effectuated a ondefor-reverse stock split of our outstanding sharfesommon stock. Our authoriz
shares of common stock were not adjusted as & fahis reverse stock split. All share and redadgtion and warrant information presente
the following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations and theoaqganying consolidated interim financ
statements have been retroactively adjusted teatetthe reduced number of shares outstanding whaalited from this action.

Critical Accounting Policies

A critical accounting policy is one that is bothgortant to the portrayal of our financial conditiand results of operation and requ
managemen$ most difficult, subjective or complex judgmerdfien as a result of the need to make estimatest dhe effect of matters that
inherently uncertain. Our critical accounting piEi are more fully described in Note 2 of the Ndtethe Consolidated Financial Statem
included in our Transition Report and are disclogedhe Managemers’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations section of our Transition Report. THexree not been any material changes to such cra@malunting policies since June 30, 2012.

The currency of the primary economic environmentwinich our operations are conducted is the U.Sladdql'$” or “dollar”).
Accordingly, our currency is the dollar.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended December 31, 2012 ComparedreeTonths Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues For the three months ended December 31, 2013| tetenue increased approximately $0.1 million, 406%, tc
approximately $1.4 million from approximately $1million during the same period in 2011. The follogiis an explanation of t
approximately $0.1 million increase in revenue lemldown by its main two components, an increasgrass revenues of approximal
$34,000, and a net increase in deferred revenuaspsbximately $24,000.

For the three months ended December 31, 2012, dotak revenue increased by approximately $35,808pproximately 2.6%,
approximately $1.4 million from approximately $I8llion during the same period in 2011. This ingeén total gross revenue is attributi
to an increase in both sales volume and price, initheased sales volume accounting for approximéai&?,000, or approximately 1.3%,
price increases to our repeat distributors accogrftir the remaining approximately $17,000, or agpnately 1.3%. With respect to regia
the increase in gross revenue was mainly attribeitiban increase of approximately $0.3 milliorghoss revenue from our distributors in #
and an increase of approximately $0.1 million imsg revenue from our distributors in Europe. Thesecases were partially offset b
decrease of approximately $0.2 million in grosseraie from our distributor in Israel and a decreafsapproximately $0.1 million in gro
revenue from our distributors in Africa.

Net deferred revenue during the three months eBagsgmber 31, 2012 increased approximately $24 @08pproximately 116.2%
approximately $3,000 recognized in revenue fronraxmately $(21,000) deferred from revenue during $ame period in 2011. The reve
recognized and deferred during both periods rel&edur provision for returns, which is calculatedsed on our history of returns, .
recognized one year later.

Gross Profit. For the three months ended December 31, 2013sgoofit (revenue less cost of revenues) incre@8e8%, o
approximately $0.2 million, to approximately $0.8llimn from approximately $0.6 million during thease period in 2011. The increas:
gross profit is attributable to both an increasenét sales of approximately $0.1 million, as well @ decrease in cost of goods sol
approximately $0.1 million. Gross margin increasexn 48.1% in the three months ended December @11 20 59.5% in the three mon
ended December 31, 2012.

Royalties’ Buyout Expensed-or the three months ended December 31, 2012neuered approximately $0.9 million in royalties’
buyout expenses relating to the restructuring ofroyalty agreement for MGuard Prime. In connectidth the restructuring of this agreem
the licensor of the stent design used for this pebdgreed to reduce the royalty from 7% of netsaltside of the United States, 7% of the
$10,000,000 of net sales in the United States &t df net sales in the United States above $100000p 2.9% of all net sales both inside
outside the United States in exchange for (i) uwiwg $85,000 in regulatory fees owed to us, (8)rmaking full payment of royalties owec
of September 30, 2012 in the amount of $205,587(#h&1,763,000, payable in 215,000 shares ofammmon stock that were valued at $t
per share. There was no such expense during tee thonths ended December 31, 2011. Royaliagout expenses as a percentage of re\
was 68.0% for the three months ended December@®,. 2




Research and Development ExpensEsr the three months ended December 31, 201@ames and development expenses incre
50.6%, or approximately $0.4 million, to approxielgt$1.3 million, from approximately $0.9 milliorudng the same period in 2011. -
increase in cost resulted primarily from highenidal trial expenses of approximately $0.4 milliattributable mainly to our planned U.S. F
and Drug Administration trial (approximately $0.2llimn), and a clinical trial for our MGuard Cardtiproduct (approximately $0.2 milliol
Research and development expense as a percentageniie increased to 93.0% for the three monttisceDecember 31, 2012 from 64.69
the same period in 2011.

Selling and Marketing Expense&or the three months ended December 31, 201fgahd marketing expenses increased 92.7'
approximately $0.6 million, to approximately $1.2llion, from approximately $0.6 million during theame period in 2011. The increas
selling and marketing expenses resulted primardynfan increase of approximately $0.4 million ipenditures related to the Transcatt
Cardiovascular Therapeutics (TCT) meeting in MiaRigrida, where we announced our successful MASTIER results and approximatt
$0.2 million of additional salaries expense as weaeded our sales activities worldwide. Selling amarketing expenses as a percenta
revenue increased to 89.3% in 2012 from 48.5% 1120

General and Administrative Expensédsor the three months ended December 31, 2012rglesnd administrative expenses decre
75.8%, or approximately $5.6 million, to approxielgt$1.8 million from approximately $7.4 million dog the same period in 2011. T
decrease resulted primarily from a decrease ineshased compensation of $6.0 million (which predately pertained to directors’
compensation), partially offset by an increasepgfraximately $0.4 million in legal fees. Generatlatministrative expenses as a percenta
revenue decreased to 132.5% in 2012 from 572.62011.

Financial Expenses (Income)-or the three months ended December 31, 201&hdial expense (income) decreased to approxin
$2.5 million of financial income from approximate$89,000 of financial expense during the same deno2011. The decrease in expe
resulted primarily from approximately $3.5 milliaf financial income pertaining to the revaluatidncertain of our warrants due to our st
price decreasing to $3.90 on December 31, 2018) $8.08 on September 30, 2012 and approximatell ®dlion for the favorable impact
exchange rate differences in the three months ebdeémber 31, 2012, partially offset by approxitya$i.1 million of amortization expen
pertaining to our convertible debentures and thedated issuance costs for the three months enéedrber 31, 2012. Financial expense
percentage of revenue decreased from 3.0% in 201184.3)% in 2012.

Tax Expenses For the three months ended December 31, 2012 .exmense increased by approximately $0.1 millioom
approximately $(43,000) for the three months erldedember 31, 2011, to approximately $42,000 dutiegsame period in 2012.

Net Loss. Our net loss decreased by approximately $6.3amijllor 76.7%, to approximately $1.9 million foretithree months end
December 31, 2012 from approximately $8.2 milliamidg the same period in 2011. The decrease itoestresulted primarily from a decre
of approximately $3.7 million in operating expengsse above for explanation), a decrease of appairly $2.5 million in financial expens
(see above for explanation), an increase of apprataly $0.2 million in gross profit and an increafeapproximately $0.1 million in t
expenses.

Six Months Ended December 31, 2012 Compared thi&mths Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues. For the six months ended December 31, 2012, tea¢nue decreased approximately $1.4 million, 813%, tc
approximately $1.9 million from approximately $3million during the same period in 2011. The follogiis an explanation of t
approximately $1.4 million decrease in revenue brodown by its main two components, a decreasedssgevenues of approximately ¢
million, and a net increase in deferred revenuegppfoximately $0.1 million.

For the six months ended December 31, 2012, totalsgevenue decreased by approximately $1.5 milbio approximately 46.2%,
approximately $1.8 million from approximately $31llion during the same period in 2011. This ing®an total gross revenue is entil
attributable to a decrease in sales volume of aqmately $1.5 million, or approximately 46.6%, pallyy offset by price increases to our rey
distributors of approximately $14,000, or approxieta 0.4%. The $1.5 million decrease was attribletgdsimarily to activities in anticipatic
of the release of our MASTER trial results at thrankcatheter Cardiovascular Therapeutics (TCT) inmgét Miami, Florida, which include
evaluating and appointing new distributors in saemitories, as well as replacing third party disitors with direct sales channels in
European countries where end user average seltiogspand the lack of strong distributors have tihisales. Broken out by region,
decrease in gross revenue was mainly attributabdedecrease of approximately $0.8 million in gn@ssenue from our distributor in Europt
decrease of approximately $0.6 million in grossereie from our distributors in Central and South Ainge a decrease of approximately ¢
million in gross revenue from our distributors srdel and a decrease of approximately $0.1 milliogross revenue from our distributor:
Africa. These decreases were partially offset binarease of approximately $0.3 million in groseereue from our distributors in Asia.




Net deferred revenue during the six months endezbdber 31, 2012 increased to approximately $83;866gnized in revenue fr¢
approximately $(24,000) deferred from revenue dptime same period in 2011. The revenue recogninelddaferred during both peric
related to our provision for returns, which is cééted based on our history of returns, and re@eghone year later. The reason for the inci
in the six months ended December 31, 2012, compar¢de same period in 2011, is the decrease &sdattween periods, as well as
reassessment of the provision for returns durirmgsiit months ended December 31, 2012. Our reassasghthe provision for returns
approximately $55,000 was based on a comparisooupthistory of returns against the percentage tdsswe had been recording in
provision.

Gross Profit. For the six months ended December 31, 2012, goosfit (revenue less cost of revenues) decreaseti% o
approximately $0.7 million, to approximately $1.1llimn from approximately $1.8 million during theasme period in 2011. The decreas
gross profit is attributable to a decrease in r@¢ssof approximately $1.4 million, partially offsby a decrease in cost of goods sol
approximately $0.7 million. Gross margin increaf®an 55.1% in the six months ended December 3112058.2% in the six months ent
December 31, 2012.

Royalties’ Buyout Expensegor the six months ended December 31, 2012, watied approximately $0.9 million in royaltidsiyou
expenses relating to the restructuring of our tyyagreement for MGuard Prime (see above for exgtlan). There was no such expense dt
the six months ended December 31, 2011. Royahiggdut expenses as a percentage of revenue w4 4&:.4he six months ended Decen
31, 2012.

Research and Development ExpensEsr the six months ended December 31, 2012, refseand development expenses incre
59.4%, or approximately $0.8 million, to approxielgt$2.2 million from approximately $1.4 million dog the same period in 2011. 1
increase in cost resulted primarily from highenidlal trial expenses of approximately $0.7 milliattributable mainly to a clinical trial for c
MGuard Carotid product (approximately $0.3 millipour planned U.S. Food and Drug Administratioalttapproximately $0.2 million) ai
the MASTER Trial (approximately $0.2 million). Irddition to the increase in clinical trial expenségre was an increase of approxime
$0.1 million in salaries and shabased compensation related to the hiring of addifielinical trial personnel. Research and develep
expense as a percentage of revenue increased.&#d 1& the six months ended December 31, 2012 #2rh% in the same period in 2011.

Selling and Marketing Expense$&or the six months ended December 31, 2012ngedind marketing expenses increased 73.3
approximately $0.7 million, to approximately $1.6llion, from approximately $0.9 million during theame period in 2011. The increas
selling and marketing expenses resulted primardynfan increase of approximately $0.4 million ippemditures related to the Transcatt
Cardiovascular Therapeutics (TCT) meeting in MiaRtgrida, where we announced our successful MASTHER results, approximately $(
million of additional salaries expense as we expdndur sales activities worldwide, and approximats0.1 million of additional trav
expense. Selling and marketing expenses as a pageeof revenue increased to 86.5% in 2012 fror@%8n 2011.

General and Administrative ExpenseBor the six months ended December 31, 2012, geaad administrative expenses decre
59.5%, or approximately $5.9 million, to approxielgt$4.0 million from approximately $9.9 million dng the same period in 2011. T
decrease resulted primarily from a decrease ineshbased compensation of $6.8 million (which predwtely pertained to directors’
compensation), partially offset by an increasepgraximately $0.4 million in legal fees, an incread approximately $0.2 million in bad d
expense, an increase of approximately $0.1 miliiorent expense and an increase of approximatel® Blion in miscellaneous expens
General and administrative expenses as a perceotageenue decreased to 215.2% in 2012 from 301n52011.

Financial Expenses For the six months ended December 31, 2012, dinhexpenses increased 1,076.9%, or approxim&el§
million to approximately $1.7 million from approxately $0.1 million during the same period in 20The increase resulted primarily fri
approximately $2.1 million of amortization expenEtaining to our convertible debentures and thedated issuance costs, partially offse
approximately $0.3 million of financial income parting to the revaluation of certain of our warsadtie to our stock price decreasing to $
on December 31, 2012, from $4.24 on June 30, 2@@i2approximately $0.1 million for the favorable iagb of exchange rate differences
the six months ended December 31, 2012. Finarxjedrese as a percentage of revenue increased f&9nin.2011, to 93.1% in 2012.




Tax ExpensesFor the six months ended December 31, 2012 xp&rese increased by approximately $0.1 million frgpproximatel
$(18,000) for the six months ended December 311 2@lapproximately $49,000 of during the samequkin 2012.

Net Loss. Our net loss decreased by approximately $1.lianjllor 10.4%, to approximately $9.4 million foretlsix months end:
December 31, 2012 from approximately $10.5 millduring the same period in 2011. The decrease inosst resulted primarily from
decrease of approximately $3.5 million in operaxgenses (see above for explanation), partiafisebby an increase of approximately ¢
million in financial expenses (see above for expteom), a decrease of approximately $0.7 milliongiross profit and an increase
approximately $0.1 million in tax expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have had recurring losses and negative casts flomn operating activities and have significartufa commitments. For the
months ended December 31, 2012, we had losses pbxamately $9.4 million and negative cash flowsnfr operating activities
approximately $5.8 million. We believe that ourditial resources as of December 31, 2012 shoullesna to continue funding the nega
cash flows from operating activities through theeth months ended September 30, 2013. Further, cogingeOctober 2013, our sen
convertible debentures are subject to a comtingent redemption option that could requiretaisnake a payment of approximately $:
million, including accrued interest. Since we expeccontinue incurring negative cash flows fromegtions and in light of the potential ¢
requirement in connection with our convertible dehees, there is substantial doubt about our ghiittcontinue operating as a going concern.

We will need to raise further capital at some fatppint in time, through the sale of additional iggsecurities or debt. Our futt
capital requirements and the adequacy of our adailfunds will depend on many factors, including ability to successfully commerciali
our MGuard products, our development of future potsl and competing technological and market devedops. However, we may be une
to raise sufficient additional capital when we regut or upon terms favorable to us. In additithne terms of any securities we issue in fL
financings may be more favorable to new investoid may include preferences, superior voting rigirtd the issuance of warrants or o
derivative securities, which may have a furtheutilie effect on the holders of any of our secusitigen outstanding. If we are unable to ot
adequate funds on reasonable terms, we will needrtail operations significantly, including podgilpostponing or halting our planned L
Food and Drug Administration clinical trial or eritgy into financing agreements with unattractivents.

General. At December 31, 2012, we had cash and cash dgoisaf approximately $5.4 million, as compared&1®.3 million as ¢
June 30, 2012. The decrease is attributable pryntariour net loss, excluding narash financial expenses. We have historically noetcas!
needs through a combination of issuance of neweshdrorrowing activities and sales. Our cash requénts are generally for prod
development, clinical trials, marketing and saletsvties, finance and administrative cost, capégbenditures and general working capital.

Cash used in our operating activities was approtdéima5.8 million for the six months ended Decem®gr 2012 and $4.2 million f
the same period in 2011. The principal reasongherusage of cash in our operating activities i@ $ix months ended December 31, :
include a net loss of approximately $9.4 milliordan increase in working capital of approximatedy2smillion, offset by approximately $!
million in non-cash share-based compensation, appedely $1.2 million in non-cash financial expesisapproximately $0.9 million in a non-
cash royalties buyout, approximately $0.1 million depreciation and amortization expenses and appabely $0.2 million of all othe
miscellaneous expenditures.

Cash used in our investing activities was approiga$193,000 during the six months ended Decen3der2012, compared
approximately $157,000 of cash generated by invgsittivities during the same period in 2011. Thaqgipal reason for the decrease in «
flow from investing activities during 2012 was therchase of approximately $87,000 of new manufagjuequipment, an increase in restrit
cash of approximately $56,000 and the funding oblegee retirement funds of approximately $50,000.

Cash generated by financing activities was appratehg $1.0 million for the six months ended Decenfie 2012, compared to $.
million generated from financing activities for teame period in 2011. The principal source of dasim financing activities during the
months ended December 31, 2012 was funds recedretid exercise of options and warrants in the arnofiapproximately $1.0 million.
contrast, during the six months ended Decembe2@1], we received approximately $1.5 million frdme exercise of options, partially off
by a repayment of a long term loan of approxima$gly2 million.




As of December 31, 2012, our current liabilities@aded current assets by a multiple of 1.05. Cuassets decreased approxime
$5.2 million during the six month period, mainlyedto cash used in operations, and current liadslitncreased by approximately $6.0 mil
during the same period, mainly due to the liabifissociated with our convertible debentures. Assalt, our working capital surplus decree
by approximately $11.2 million to a working capitificiency of approximately $0.4 million at Decesnt31, 2012.

Convertible Debentures

On April 5, 2012, we issued senior secured corlertiiebentures due April 5, 2014 in the originajregate principal amount
$11,702,128 and fivgear warrants to purchase an aggregate of 835&6@s of our common stock at an exercise pricer Bper share
exchange for aggregate gross proceeds of $11.@milvith corresponding net proceeds of approxitga$9.9 million. The convertib
debentures were issued with a 6% original issudismunt, bear interest at an annual rate of 8%aaadatonvertible at any time into share
common stock at an initial conversion price of $7fer share. Upon conversion of the convertibleedabres, investors will receive
conversion premium equal to 8%, per annum, witimét lof 12% for the term of the convertible debaety of the principal amount be
converted. In addition, the investors may requsdairedeem the convertible debentures at any ditee October 5, 2013 (18 months after
date of issuance) for 112% of the then outstangimgcipal amount, plus all accrued interest, andmay prepay the convertible debenti
after six months for 112% of the then outstandimggipal amount, plus all accrued interest. In amgtion with this financing, we pe
placement agent fees of $848,750 and issued plateagents warrants to purchase 78,078 shares ahoonstock, with terms identical to -
warrants issued to the investors.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
None
Factors That May Affect Future Operations

We believe that our future operating results wilhtinue to be subject to quarterly variations bagpdn a wide variety of facto
including the cyclical nature of the ordering patteof our distributors, timing of regulatory appads, the implementation of various phase
our clinical trials and manufacturing efficiencigse to the learning curve of utilizing new materiahd equipment. Our operating results ¢
also be impacted by a weakening of the Euro arehgthening of the New Israeli Shekel, or NIS, baglainst the U.S. dollar. Lastly, ot
economic conditions we cannot foresee may affestotner demand, such as individual country reimbmesg policies pertaining to ¢
products.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

During the six months ended December 31, 2012,mended our license agreement for the use of tim désign for MGuard Prim
Pursuant to the amendment, among other thingdictresor of the stent design used for this pro@ageeed to reduce the royalty from 7% of
sales outside of the United States, 7% of the $t€t,000,000 of net sales in the United Statesl@4d of net sales in the United States al
$10,000,000 to 2.9% of all net sales both insid# @utside the United States in exchange for (vaiwing $85,000 in regulatory fees owel
us, (i) us making full payment of all royalties ed as of September 30, 2012 in the amount of $8@5zhd (iii)) $1,763,000, payable
215,000 shares of our common stock that were vadti&8.20 per share.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk related to fluctuatio interest rates and in foreign currency exgbaates.
Interest Rate Exposure
Our exposure to market risk relates primarily torsterm investments, including funds classified ahaguivalents. As of Deceml

31, 2012, all excess funds were invested in timgosiés and other highly liquid investments, therefour interest rate exposure is
considered to be material.




Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

Our foreign currency exchange rate exposure coetinio evolve as we grow internationally. Our expesio foreign currenc
transaction gains and losses is the result of iceréaenues and expenses being denominated inncigseother than the U.S. dollar, prims
the Euro and the NIS. We do not currently engageeidging or similar transactions to reduce theslesriFluctuations in currency excha
rates could impact our results of operations, for@rposition, and cash flows.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Management's Conclusions Regarding Effectiveness Biisclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2012, we conducted an evaluatinder the supervision and participation of manag@ including our chi
executive officer and chief financial officer, dfet effectiveness of our disclosure controls anaguiares (as defined in Rule 1Bafe) an
Rule 15d15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad). There are inherent limitations to the d¢ffecess of any system
disclosure controls and procedures. Accordingleneeffective disclosure controls and proceduresardy provide reasonable assuranc
achieving their control objectives.

Based upon this evaluation, our chief executiveceffand chief financial officer concluded that @isclosure controls and procedt
are effective at the reasonable assurance lewdl@scember 31, 2012.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwencial reporting during the six months ended &aber 31, 2012 that materic
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in litigatitirat arises through the normal course of busin@ssof the date of this filing, we
are not a party to any material litigation nor aeaware of any such threatened or pending litgati

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are numerous and varied risks, known andawknthat may prevent us from achieving our goétsi should carefully consider
the risks described below and the other informaitiafuded in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qour Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the three months ended September 30, 2012 and ifiransition Report on Form 10-K/T for the six moperiod ended June 30, 2012,
including the consolidated financial statements rataked notes. If any of the following risks, owyaother risks not described below, actually
occur, it is likely that our business, financiahddion, and/or operating results could be matiriadiversely affected. In such case, the trading
price and market value of our common stock couldide and you may lose part or all of your investiriea our common stock. The risks and
uncertainties described below include forward-logkstatements and our actual results may diffen fitwose discussed in these forward-
looking statements.

Risks Related to Our Business

The report of our independent auditors contains arplanatory paragraph as to our ability to continwes a going concern, which could
prevent us from obtaining new financing on reasonakierms or at all

Because we have had recurring losses and negatteflows from operating activities and have sigaift future commitments,
substantial doubt exists regarding our abilitygmain in operation at the same level we are cuyreetforming. Further, the report of
Kesselman & Kesselman C.P.A.s (Isr.), our indepehokgistered public accounting firm, with respiecour financial statements at June 30,
2012, December 31, 2011 and 2010, and for the sixtimperiod ended June 30, 2012, and the yearsiddglsember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
contains an explanatory paragraph as to our paiénébility to continue as a going concern. Adatitlly, this may adversely affect our ability
to obtain new financing on reasonable terms ollat a




We have a history of net losses and may experigntére losses.

To date, we have experienced net losses. A suladtpottion of the expenses associated with ourufaaaturing facilities are fixed in
nature (i.e., depreciation) and will reduce ourrafieg margin until such time, if ever, as we doéedo increase utilization of our capacity
through increased sales of our products. The dini@ls necessary to support our anticipated gnomill be expensive and lengthy. In
addition, our strategic plan will require a sigoéit investment in clinical trials, product devetegnt and sales and marketing programs, whic
may not result in the accelerated revenue grovahvte anticipate. Furthermore, we have signifiéafitre commitments with respect to our
convertible debentures. Since we expect to confimugrring negative cash flows from operations anliight of the potential cash expenditu
that may be required to satisfy our convertibleesdbres, there can be no assurance that we willgareerate sufficient revenues to become
profitable.

We expect to derive our revenue from sales of ousdéird stent products and other products we may digwelf we fail to generate revenue
from this source, our results of operations and thielue of our business would be materially and ackedy affected

We expect our revenue to be generated from salegrdfiGuard stent products and other products we deaelop. Future sales of
these products, if any, will be subject to the igicef regulatory approvals and commercial and retdcertainties that may be outside our
control. If we fail to generate such revenues,restilts of operations and the value of our busiaessssecurities would be materially and
adversely affected.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectl@roperty protection covering our products, othersy be able to make, use or sell ¢
products, which would adversely affect our reven

Our ability to protect our products from unauthedzor infringing use by third parties depends sarislly on our ability to obtain ai
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Similathg, ability to protect our trademark rights migbktimportant to prevent third party
counterfeiters from selling poor quality goods gsaur designated trademarks/trade names. Due teiegdegal standards relating to the
patentability, validity and enforceability of patertovering medical devices and pharmaceuticalntions and the scope of claims made unde
these patents, our ability to enforce patents ¢euain and involves complex legal and factual tjaes. Accordingly, rights under any of our
pending patent applications and patents may natigieaus with commercially meaningful protection arr products or may not afford a
commercial advantage against our competitors ar toenpetitive products or processes. In additatents may not be issued from any
pending or future patent applications owned byiaarised to us, and moreover, patents that maysbedsto us now or in the future may not be
valid or enforceable. Further, even if valid anfoeceable, our patents may not be sufficiently draaprevent others from marketing products
like ours, despite our patent rights.

The validity of our patent claims depends, in pantwhether prior art references exist that desasibrender obvious our inventions
of the filing date of our patent applications. Waymot have identified all prior art, such as W&d foreign patents or published applicatior
published scientific literature, that could advérsdfect the patentability of our pending patepplcations. For example, some material
references may be in a foreign language and malgenahcovered during examination of our patentiepfbns. Additionally, patent
applications in the United States are maintainecbinfidence for up to 18 months after their fililg.some cases, however, patent application:
remain confidential in the U.S. Patent and Tradén@fice for the entire time prior to issuance dd.8. patent. Patent applications filed in
countries outside the United States are not tylyigalblished until at least 18 months from theisfifiling date. Similarly, publication of
discoveries in the scientific or patent literatofeen lags behind actual discoveries. Thereforecaraot be certain that we were the first to
invent, or the first to file patent applicationsateng to, our stent technologies. In the event ¢hthird party has also filed a U.S. patent
application covering our stents or a similar invemtwe may have to participate in an adversarat@eding, known as an interference,
declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offiaetermine priority of invention in the United st lt is possible that we may be
unsuccessful in the interference, resulting inss lof some portion or all of our position in theitdd States. The laws of some foreign
jurisdictions do not protect intellectual properigghts to the same degree as in the United Statesmany companies have encounte
significant difficulties in protecting, enforcingnd defending such rights in certain foreign judsdns. If we encounter such difficulties or are
otherwise precluded from effectively protecting mitellectual property rights in any foreign juristions, our business prospects could be
substantially harmed.

We may initiate litigation to enforce our patemghis on any patents issued on pending patent afipls, which may prompt
adversaries in such litigation to challenge thédityl, scope, ownership, or enforceability of oatents. Third parties can sometimes bring
challenges against a patent holder to resolve tesaes, as well. If a court decides that any gatbnts are not valid, not enforceable, not
wholly owned by us, or are of a limited scope, weymot have the right to stop others from usingiouentions. Also, even if our patent rights
are determined by a court to be valid and enforegtiftey may not be sufficiently broad to prevethtens from marketing products similar to
ours or designing around our patents, despite atemp rights, nor do they provide us with freedonoperate unimpeded by the patent and
other intellectual property rights of others thayntover our products.




We also rely on trade secret protection to pradectinterests in proprietary know-how and for pissss for which patents are difficult
to obtain or enforce. We may not be able to pratecttrade secrets adequately. In addition, we @rlypon-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with employees, consultants and otligepéo protect, in part, trade secrets and gtheprietary technology. These agreements
may be breached and we may not have adequate esfediany breach. Moreover, others may indepehddavelop equivalent proprietary
information, and third parties may otherwise gainess to our trade secrets and proprietary knowlefigy disclosure of confidential data into
the public domain or to third parties could allommpetitors to learn our trade secrets and usenfbemiation in competition against us.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and mafaeturing personnel, and if our manufacturing fadiies are unable to provide an
adequate supply of products, our growth could bmited and our business could be harmed.

We currently manufacture our MGuard stent at oailifees in Tel Aviv, Israel, and we have contratteith QualiMed Innovative
Medizinprodukte GmbH, a German manufacturer, tessBsproduction. If there were a disruption ta edisting manufacturing facility, we
would have no other means of manufacturing our M@sgent until we were able to restore the manufagy capability at our facility or
develop alternative manufacturing facilities. If were unable to produce sufficient quantities af MGuard stent for use in our current and
planned clinical trials, or if our manufacturingopess yields substandard stents, our developmdrtanmercialization efforts would be
delayed.

We currently have limited resources, facilities axgerience to commercially manufacture our prodacadidates. In order to produce
our MGuard stent in the quantities that we antigpaill be required to meet anticipated market dedhave will need to increase, or “scale up,
the production process by a significant factor diercurrent level of production. There are tecahihallenges to scaling-up manufacturing
capacity, and developing commercial-scale manufexgdacilities will require the investment of suéstial funds and hiring and retaining
additional management and technical personnel valve the necessary manufacturing experience. Wenwiaguccessfully complete any
required scale-up in a timely manner or at allii&ble to do so, we may not be able to meet paidature demand. If we are unable to
manufacture a sufficient supply of our MGuard stemntr revenues, business and financial prospeatdia® adversely affected and we may
suffer reputational harm, which could further adedy affect our revenues, business and financ@dpg@cts. In addition, if the scaled-up
production process is not efficient or produceatstéhat do not meet quality and other standamgsfuture gross margins may decline. Also,
our current and planned personnel, systems, proes@und controls may not be adequate to supposdrdigipated growth. If we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, our business coeldhérmed.

Additionally, any damage to or destruction of oet Aviv facilities or its equipment, prolonged pawmitage or contamination at our
facility would significantly impair our ability tproduce MGuard stents.

Finally, the production of our MGuard stent mustwrcin a highly controlled, clean environment tanimiize particles and other yield
and quality-limiting contaminants. In spite of sfgent quality controls, weaknesses in process alomtmminute impurities in materials may
cause a substantial percentage of defective preduet lot. If we are unable to maintain stringgumality controls, or if contamination problems
arise, our clinical development and commercialaatfforts could be delayed, which would harm ausibess and results of operations.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration may not app® our investigational device exemption applicatifor a pivotal trial of our MGuard
Coronary with bio-stable mesh, which would preverst from conducting our clinical trials in the Unité States, and even if the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration does grant such approvaljioclinical trials may be more costly and burdenserthan we currently anticipate,
which would limit or delay our ability to completdinical trials and ultimately market our MGuard Cmnary with bio-stable mesh in the
United States.

In connection with our efforts to seek approvabof MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh by the. B&d and Drug
Administration, we filed an investigational devieeemption application with the U.S. Food and Drudynistration during the summer of
2012 to conduct a pivotal trial. On August 29, 20th2 U.S. Food and Drug Administration issued lettar disapproving our investigational
device exemption application due to insufficientad® support the initiation of a human clinicaldt. More specifically, the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration cited numerous deficiencie®ur application which may require, amongst othergs, new and/or repeated testing in
order to resolve. On December 17, 2012, we segttex in response to the U.S. Food and Drug Adrmatisn that addressed the issues cited i
the disapproval letter. In addition, we substahtiahanged the design of the planned trial at tina. On January 18, 2013, the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration issued us a second letter gisaying our investigational device exemption apgiicn. The U.S. Food and Drug
Administration noted that although our December204,2 letter addressed some of the issues citégiAugust 29, 2012 disapproval letter,
there remained additional comments to be addréesagpport the initiation of a human clinical stujore specifically, the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration cited humerous deficiencie®imr application which may require, amongst othergs, additional analysis, the submis:
of additional materials or new and/or repeatedrtgsh order to resolve. There can be no assurtratave will be able to resolve these
deficiencies and secure approval of our investigati device exemption application from the U.S.draad Drug Administration.
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If the U.S. Food and Drug Administration does ngprave our investigational device exemption appilicg we would be unable to
conduct a pivotal trial of our MGuard Coronary witin-stable mesh, thereby preventing us from margeélGuard Coronary with bio-stable
mesh in the United States. Not being able to mavi@tiard Coronary with bistable mesh in the United States would have anrag\effect o
our business. Moreover, even if the U.S. Food andy[Administration approves an investigational devexemption application to conduct a
pivotal trial, the clinical study we conduct maywhkainanticipated complications and delays, may beeroostly than we currently anticipate,
and/or may fail to achieve the primary or secondargpoints. The U.S. Food and Drug Administratiaayrapprove our investigational device
exemption application with conditions relating be tscope or design of our clinical trials for whigh have not planned. These conditions may
require us to collect additional data, enroll mpagients, spend more time and expend more resotitaasve currently anticipate, and these
conditions may make a clinical trial in the Unit8thtes more costly and time consuming than we wtlyrplan. Any unanticipated costs and
length of U.S. clinical trials, along with our fark to achieve primary or secondary endpoints wdeldy, if not prevent, our ability to market
our MGuard Coronary with bio-stable mesh in thetehiStates, which would harm our business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a praarket approval application will be lengthy and expsive and will require the enrollment of a lar
number of patients, and suitable patients may b#idult to identify and recruit. Any such delay diilure of clinical trials could prevent us
from commercializing our stent products, which wabinaterially and adversely affect our results oferptions and the value of oL
business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pre-markgraval application to the U.S. Food and Drug Adstmation for our MGuard stent
will be expensive and will require the enrollmefiedarge number of patients, and suitable patierayg be difficult to identify and recruit,
which may cause a delay in the development and eaoialization of our product candidates. Clinicéls supporting a pre-market approval
applications for the Cypher stent developed by dohr& Johnson and the Taxus Express2 stent devkmpBoston Scientific Corporation,
which were approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstriztion and are currently marketed, involved gratipopulations of approximately
1,000 and 1,300, respectively, and a 12-monthviolip period. In some trials, a greater number ¢iepts and a longer follow up period may
be required. The U.S. Food and Drug Administraticay require us to submit data on a greater numhgait@nts or for a longer follow-up
period than those for pre-market approval applicetifor the Cypher stent and the Taxus Express. ®atient enroliment in clinical trials and
the ability to successfully complete patient folloyw depends on many factors, including the sizéefatient population, the nature of the
protocol, the proximity of patients to clinicalest the eligibility criteria for the clinical tri@nd patient compliance. For example, patients may
be discouraged from enrolling in our clinical tsidf the trial protocol requires them to undergteesive post-treatment procedures or follopv-
to assess the safety and efficacy of our prodocttiey may be persuaded to participate in conteamgmus clinical trials of competitive
products. In addition, patients participating i olinical trials may die before completion of thial or suffer adverse medical events unrelate:
to or related to our products. Delays in patiembiment or failure of patients to continue to peigate in a clinical trial may cause an increase
in costs and delays or result in the failure ofc¢heical trial.

In addition, the length of time required to comelelinical trials for pharmaceutical and medicalide products varies substantially
according to the degree of regulation and the tgpmplexity, novelty and intended use of a prodacnt can continue for several years and
millions of dollars. The commencement and compietibclinical trials for our products under devaiognt may be delayed by many factors,
including governmental or regulatory delays andngfes in regulatory requirements, policy and guigsdior our inability or the inability of al
potential licensee to manufacture or obtain froirdtparties materials sufficient for use in prewal studies and clinical trials.
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Physicians may not widely adopt the MGuard steniess they determine, based on experience, -term clinical data and published peer
reviewed journal articles, that the use of the MGulestent provides a safe and effective alternativeother existing treatments for coronary
artery disease.

We believe that physicians will not widely adope tGuard stent unless they determine, based orrierpe, long-term clinical data
and published peer reviewed journal articles, thatuse of our MGuard stent provides a safe ard®fe alternative to other existing
treatments for coronary artery disease, includomgary artery bypass grafting balloon angioplasére-metal stents and other drug-eluting
stents, provided by Johnson & Johnson, Boston 8fieeGorporation, Medtronic Inc., Abbott Laborates and others.

We cannot provide any assurance that the datactediérom our current and planned clinical triaif e sufficient to demonstrate
that the MGuard stents are an attractive alteradatwther procedures. If we fail to demonstrafetgand efficacy that is at least comparabl
other drug-eluting stents or bare-metal stentshhae received regulatory approval and that aréadbla on the market, our ability to
successfully market the MGuard stent will be siigaiftly limited. Even if the data collected froningtal studies or clinical experience indicate
positive results, each physician’s actual expegeasith our MGuard stent will vary. Clinical triat®nducted with the MGuard Coronary stent
have involved procedures performed by physicians are technically proficient and are high-volumenstusers. Consequently, both short-
term and long-term results reported in these dirtigals may be significantly more favorable thgpical results of practicing physicians,
which could negatively affect rates of adoptionswof products. We also believe that published peeiewed journal articles and
recommendations and support by influential physigieegarding our MGuard Coronary stent will be imi@at for market acceptance and
adoption, and we cannot assure you that we wiltivecthese recommendations and support, or thaiostiye articles will be published.

In addition, currently, physicians consider drelgting stents to be the industry standard fortineat of coronary artery disease. WI
we believe that the MGuard Coronary stent is a aateeffective alternative, it is not a drug-elgtstent, which may further hinder its support
and adoption by physicians.

Our products are based on a new technology, andhaee only limited experience in regulatory affairashich may affect our ability or the
time required to navigate complex regulatory regaeiments and obtain necessary regulatory approvdlsuch approvals are received at all.
Regulatory delays or denials may increase our cpstaise us to lose revenue and materially and adebr affect our results of operatior
and the value of our business.

Because our products are new and long-term suceeasures have not been completely validated, regylagencies, including the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, may take a digant amount of time in evaluating product appia@plications. For example, there are
currently several methods of measuring restenoslsage do not know which of these metrics, or coration of these metrics, will be
considered appropriate by the U.S. Food and DrugiAigtration for evaluating the clinical efficacy stents. Treatments may exhibit a
favorable measure using one of these metrics anmhf@vorable measure using another metric. Any gham the accepted metrics may result
in reconfiguration of, and delays in, our clinitdhls. Additionally, we have only limited experignin filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals, and oniceli, regulatory and quality assurance personmetarrently composed of only 9 employe
As a result, we may experience delays in conneetitim obtaining regulatory approvals for our protuc

In addition, the products we and any potentialigzes license, develop, manufacture and marksuaject to complex regulatory
requirements, particularly in the United States,ope and Asia, which can be costly and time-conagmihere can be no assurance that suct
approvals will be granted on a timely basis, iaktFurthermore, there can be no assurance ofregd compliance with all regulatory
requirements necessary for the manufacture, mackatid sale of the products we will offer in eacrket where such products are expectt
be sold, or that products we have commercializdidcantinue to comply with applicable regulatoryterements. If a government regulatory
agency were to conclude that we were not in compéiavith applicable laws or regulations, the agerayld institute proceedings to detain or
seize our products, issue a recall, impose operagisirictions, enjoin future violations and ass@gi$ and criminal penalties against us, our
officers or employees and could recommend crimpnasecution. Furthermore, regulators may procedxdin or request the recall, repair,
replacement or refund of the cost of, any devicaufectured or sold by us. Furthermore, there camdbassurance that all necessary regule
approvals will be obtained for the manufacture, kieing and sale in any market of any new produgetigped or that any potential licensee
will develop using our licensed technology.
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Even if our products are approved by regulatory hatities, if we or our suppliers fail to comply viitongoing regulatory requirements, or
we experience unanticipated problems with our pratly these products could be subject to restrictiam withdrawal from the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approwathe United States, along with the manufactupmacesses, post-approval
clinical data and promotional activities for sualbguct, will be subject to continual review andipdic inspections by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration and other regulatory bodies. In aiterr, we and our suppliers will be required tongdy with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration’s Quality System Regulation for tmanufacture of our MGuard stent, which covers tle¢hods and documentation of the
design, testing, production, control, quality aasiee, labeling, packaging, storage and shippiremgfproduct for which we obtain marketing
approval in the United States. The U.S. Food andyxdministration enforces the Quality System Ratiah through unannounced
inspections. We and our third-party manufactureds suppliers have not yet been inspected by thekd&d and Drug Administration and will
have to successfully complete such inspectionsreefe receive U.S. regulatory approval for our piaid. Failure by us or one of our suppl
to comply with statutes and regulations administdng the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and ptiegulatory bodies, or failure to take
adequate response to any observations, could iesalihong other things, any of the following egfament actions:

« warning letters or untitled letters;

« fines and civil penalties;

« unanticipated expenditures;

« delays in approving, or refusal to approve, oudputs;

« withdrawal or suspension of approval by the U.Sd-and Drug Administration or other regulatory hesi
« product recall or seizure;

« orders for physician notification or device repa@iplacement or refund,;
« interruption of production;

« oOperating restrictions;

« injunctions; and

« criminal prosecution.

If any of these actions were to occur, it couldnhaur reputation and could cause our product saldgrofitability to suffer.
Furthermore, key component suppliers may not ctigée or may not continue to be in compliance vaifiplicable regulatory requirements.

Even if regulatory approval of a product is grantethe United States, the approval may be suljeltitations on the indicated uses
for which the product may be marketed. If the W=:&od and Drug Administration determines that ownpotional materials, training or other
activities constitute promotion of an unapproved, liscould request that we cease or modify ounitng or promotional materials or subject us
to regulatory enforcement actions. It is also gaesihat other federal, state or foreign enforcena@ithorities might take action if they considet
our training or other promotional materials to dénge promotion of an unapproved use, which cagkllt in significant fines or penalties
under other statutory authorities, such as lawhipiting false claims for reimbursement.

Moreover, any modification to a device that hagieed U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvat ttould significantly affect it
safety or effectiveness, or that would constituteagor change in its intended use, design or matwfa, requires a new approval from the
Food and Drug Administration. If the U.S. Food @vdg Administration disagrees with any determinatiy us that new approval is not
required, we may be required to cease marketirig m@call the modified product until approval igaibed. In addition, we could also be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penaltie

Additionally, we may be required to conduct cogttyst-market testing and surveillance to monitorghfety or efficacy of our
products, and we will be required to report advensents and malfunctions related to our producseiLdiscovery of previously unknown
problems with our products, including unanticipadelyerse events or adverse events of unanticigatestity or frequency, manufacturing
problems, or failure to comply with regulatory réggments, such as Quality System Regulation, msyltrén restrictions on such products or
manufacturing processes, withdrawal of the prodfiota the market, voluntary or mandatory recailse$, suspension of regulatory approvals
product seizures, injunctions or the impositiortiefl or criminal penalties.

Further, healthcare laws and regulations may chaiggpficantly in the future. Any new healthcarevaor regulations may adversely

affect our business. A review of our business hyrtsoor regulatory authorities may result in a deteation that could adversely affect our
operations. In addition, the healthcare regulatmyironment may change in a way that restrictsoparations.
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Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jisdictions will prevent us from marketing our pragtts in such jurisdictions.

We intend to market our products in internationalkets. In order to market our products in otheeifin jurisdictions, we must obte
separate regulatory approvals from those obtaiméde United States and Europe. The approval puyeedhries among countries and can
involve additional testing, and the time requiredbtain approval may differ from that requiredttain CE Mark or U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approval. Foreign regulatory appiguacesses may include all of the risks associaf#tobtaining CE Mark or U.S. Food
and Drug Administration approval in addition to ethisks. We may not obtain foreign regulatory appis on a timely basis, if at all. CE M
does not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiegher countries. We may not be able to fileregulatory approvals and may not receive
necessary approvals to commercialize our produaatgitain markets.

We operate in an intensely competitive and rapidhanging business environment, and there is a salnsial risk our products could
become obsolete or uncompetitive.

The medical device market is highly competitive. éenpete with many medical device companies irLthiged States and
internationally in connection with our current puatland products under development. We face cotigrefrom numerous pharmaceutical i
biotechnology companies in the therapeutics aemjedl as competition from academic institutionsygrnment agencies and research
institutions. When we commercialize our products,expect to face intense competition from Cordigp@ration, a subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson, Boston Scientific Corporation, Guidantdienic, Inc., Abbott Vascular Devices, Terumo atiders. Most of our current and
potential competitors, including but not limitedttmse listed above, have, and will continue toehaubstantially greater financial,
technological, research and development, regulaodyclinical, manufacturing, marketing and satkstribution and personnel resources than
we do. There can be no assurance that we will Bafficient resources to successfully commerciadigeproducts, if and when they are
approved for sale. The worldwide market for steotdpcts is characterized by intensive developm#aite and rapidly advancing technology.
Our future success will depend largely upon oulitglib anticipate and keep pace with those devalepts and advances. Current or future
competitors could develop alternative technologiesducts or materials that are more effectiveieeds use or more economical than what we
or any potential licensee develop. If our techn@e@r products become obsolete or uncompetitiverelated product sales and licensing
revenue would decrease. This would have a masmtiadrse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We may become subject to claims by much larger batter capitalized competitors seeking to invaliel@ur intellectual property or our
rights thereto.

Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large
and well-capitalized companies that own or corpedkents relating to stents and their use, manufaetad delivery, we believe that it is
possible that one or more third parties will asagratent infringement claim against the manufagtuse or sale of our MGuard stent based or
one or more of these patents. It is also posdiifalea lawsuit asserting patent infringement, misaypation of intellectual property, or related
claims may have already been filed against us aflwive are not aware. A number of stent-relatedniatare owned by very large and well-
capitalized companies that are active participantse stent market. As the number of competitorhe stent market grows, the possibility of
patent infringement by us, and/or a patent infrmgat or misappropriation claim against us, increase

These companies have maintained their positiohemtarket by, among other things, establishingl@tiial property rights relating
to their products and enforcing these rights agively against their competitors and new entramtis the market. All of the major companies
in the stent and related markets, including BoSoientific Corporation, Johnson & Johnson and Madtr, Inc., have been repeatedly invol
in patent litigation relating to stents since asie1997. The stent and related markets have exped rapid technological change and
obsolescence in the past, and our competitors $tameg incentives to stop or delay the introductbnew products and technologies. We ma
pose a competitive threat to many of the compaini#ise stent and related markets. Accordingly, mainfhese companies will have a strong
incentive to take steps, through patent litigatiotherwise, to prevent us from commercializing products.

If we fail to maintain or establish satisfactory agements with suppliers, we may not be able to wbitaaterials that are necessary to deve
our products.

We depend on outside suppliers for certain raw rizd$e These raw materials or components may nedys be available at our

standards or on acceptable terms, if at all, andag be unable to locate alternative suppliersrodypce necessary materials or components c
our own.
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Some of the components of our products are cugr@ntivided by only one vendor, or a single-sourgepsier. We depend on
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH, which méactures the body of the stent, MeKo Laserstrabtévialbearbeitung for the laser
cutting of the stent, Natec Medical Ltd. for th@pgly of catheters and Biogeneral Inc. for the fid&e may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptalilee U.S. Food and Drug Administration or foreiggulatory authorities if it becomes
necessary.

If we have to switch to a replacement supplierwileface additional regulatory delays and the imgption of the manufacture and
delivery of our MGuard stent for an extended penbtime, which would delay completion of our ctal trials or commercialization of our
products. In addition, we will be required to ohtarior regulatory approval from the U.S. Food &rdg Administration or foreign regulatory
authorities to use different suppliers or composéhnat may not be as safe or as effective. Aswdtreésgulatory approval of our products may
not be received on a timely basis or at all.

We may be exposed to product liability claims andurance may not be sufficient to cover these claim

We may be exposed to product liability claims basedhe use of any of our products, or productsriparating our licensed
technology, in clinical trials. We may also be es@d to product liability claims based on the séleny such products following the receipt of
regulatory approval. Product liability claims coldd asserted directly by consumers, health-candgeis or others. We have obtained produc
liability insurance coverage; however such insueamay not provide full coverage for our future ial trials, products to be sold, and other
aspects of our business. We also have liabilityriznsce for an ongoing clinical trial in Europe.urence coverage is becoming increasingly
expensive and we may not be able to maintain cuo@rerages, or expand our insurance coverageshadia future clinical trials or the sale of
products incorporating our licensed technology d@frketing approval is obtained for such products, mgasonable cost or in sufficient amounts
to protect against losses due to product liabdityat all. A successful product liability claim series of claims brought against us could resi
judgments, fines, damages and liabilities thatdtalve a material adverse effect on our busingsmdial condition and results of operatio
We may incur significant expense investigating dafkénding these claims, even if they do not raaulability. Moreover, even if no
judgments, fines, damages or liabilities are impase us, our reputation could suffer, which coudddna material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may implement a product recall or voluntary matkwithdrawal due to product defects or product emtements and modifications,
which would significantly increase our costs.

The manufacturing and marketing of our MGuard speatucts involves an inherent risk that our praslucay prove to be defective.
In that event, we may voluntarily implement a récalmarket withdrawal or may be required to ddga regulatory authority. A recall of one
of our products, or a similar product manufactusgdnother manufacturer, could impair sales ofpttoelucts we market as a result of
confusion concerning the scope of the recall @ essult of the damage to our reputation for qualitd safety.

The successful management of operations dependswmability to attract and retain talented personhe

We depend on the expertise of our senior manageamehtesearch personnel, which would be difficuiteplace. The loss of the
services of any of our senior management could comise our ability to achieve our objectives. Farthore, recruiting and retaining qualif
personnel will be crucial to future success. Thoame be no assurance that we will be able to atredttretain necessary personnel on acceptak
terms given the competition among medical devi@gbhnology, pharmaceutical and healthcare congganniversities and non-profit
research institutions for experienced managemeisntsts, researchers, sales and marketing andfaaring personnel. If we are unable to
attract, retain and motivate our key personnel,aparations may be jeopardized and our resultpefations may be materially and adversely
affected.
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We are an international business, and we are exgbs®evarious global and local risks that could hamematerial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate globally and develop and manufacturdymts in our research and manufacturing facilitiesiultiple countries.
Consequently, we face complex legal and regulatguirements in multiple jurisdictions, which magpese us to certain financial and other
risks. International sales and operations are subjea variety of risks, including:

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

« greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreigperations;

« greater risk of uncollectible accounts;

« longer collection cycles;

« logistical and communications challenges;

« potential adverse changes in laws and regulat@gtioes, including export license requirementsgleraarriers, tariffs and tax laws;

« changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a varietyoofifyn laws;

« political and economic instability;

« increases in duties and taxation;

. foreign tax laws and potential increased costscatam with overlapping tax structures;

- greater difficulty in protecting intellectual prape

« the risk of third party disputes over ownershipreéllectual property and infringement of third paintellectual property by our
products; ant

« general economic and political conditions in thieseign markets.

International markets are also affected by econgaréssure to contain reimbursement levels andhuzak costs. Profitability from
international operations may be limited by riskd ancertainties related to regional economic caéonkt, regulatory and reimbursement
approvals, competing products, infrastructure dgwalent, intellectual property rights protection amul ability to implement our overall
business strategy. We expect these risks will asgeas we pursue our strategy to expand operatitnsew geographic markets. We may not
succeed in developing and implementing effectiicigs and strategies in each location where welaonbusiness. Any failure to do so may
harm our business, results of operations and finhnondition.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbursent for our products by third party payors, thengay be no commercially viable marke
for our product candidates or the markets may be chismaller than expectec

The availability and levels of reimbursement by ganmental and other third party payors affect tlaekat for our product candidates.
The efficacy, safety, performance and cost-effectdss of our product candidates and of any conpptimducts will determine the availability
and level of reimbursement. Reimbursement and ek payment systems in international markets sigmnjficantly by country, and include
both government sponsored healthcare and privateance. To obtain reimbursement or pricing apgriovsome countries, we may be
required to produce clinical data, which may inwbne or more clinical trials, that compares th&t-effectiveness of our products to other
available therapies. We may not obtain internatiosisnbursement or pricing approvals in a timelymmer, if at all. Our failure to receive
international reimbursement or pricing approvalsildanegatively impact market acceptance of our petglin the international markets in
which those approvals are sought.

We believe that future reimbursement may be sultjeictcreased restrictions both in the United Stated in international markets.
There is increasing pressure by governments wodelwo contain health care costs by limiting both ¢bverage and the level of reimburser
for therapeutic products and by refusing, in soames, to provide any coverage for products thad hav been approved by the relevant
regulatory agency. Future legislation, regulatiomeambursement policies of third party payors radyersely affect the demand for our
products currently under development and limit alitity to sell our product candidates on a prdfigsbasis. In addition, third party payors
continually attempt to contain or reduce the co$tsealthcare by challenging the prices chargedhéaithcare products and services. If
reimbursement for our products is unavailablemitéd in scope or amount or if pricing is set asatrsfactory levels, market acceptance of ou
products would be impaired and future revenuesnyf, would be adversely affected.

In the United States and in the European Union, obusiness could be significantly and adversely affsd by recent healthcare refor
legislation and other administration and legislatvproposals.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act tiedHealth Care and Education Reconciliation Ad¢hi United States were
enacted into law in March 2010. Certain provisiohthese acts will not be effective for a numbey®eérs and there are many programs and
requirements for which the details have not yenlfaly established or consequences not fully ustbed, and it is unclear what the full
impacts will be from the legislation. Beginning danuary 1, 2013, the legislation levies a 2.3%sextiax on sales of any U.S. medical device
listed with the U.S. Food and Drug Administratiarder Section 510(j) of the Federal Food, Drug, @odmetic Act and 21 C.F.R. Part 807,
unless the device falls within an exemption from téix, such as the exemption governing directlresde of devices to consumers or for
foreign sales of these devices. If we commence sdleur MGuard Coronary stent in the United Statteis new tax may materially and
adversely affect our business and results of opestThe legislation also focuses on a number edliebare provisions aimed at improving
quality and decreasing costs. It is uncertain igtgbint what negative unintended consequences fhrewisions will have on patient acces:



new technologies. The Medicare provisions incluadeie-based payment programs, increased fundingroparative effectiveness
research, reduced hospital payments for avoidaalémissions and hospital acquired conditions, dnotdgrograms to evaluate alternative
payment methodologies that promote care coordingtoch as bundled physician and hospital paymettijitionally, the provisions include
a reduction in the annual rate of inflation for pitals starting in 2011 and the establishment ahdependent payment advisory board to
recommend ways of reducing the rate of growth indidare spending. We cannot predict what healthgeygrams and regulations will be
ultimately implemented at the federal or state ll@véhe United States, or the effect of any futlegislation or regulation. However, any
changes that lower reimbursements for our produrcteduce medical procedure volumes could adveedédgt our business plan to introduce
our products in the United States.
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In the European Union, on September 26, 2012, thegean Commission proposed a revision of the lltgs currently governing
medical devices. If adopted by the European Padi@rand the Council in their present form, thesppsals, which may apply from 2015 or
2016, will impose stricter requirements on meddmlice manufacturers. Moreover, the supervisingpmiences of the competent authoritie
the EU Member States and the notified bodies wlstrengthened. The regulation of advanced tharaggicinal products is also in continued
development in the European Union, with the Eurapdadicines Agency publishing new clinical or sgfgtiidelines concerning advanced
therapy medicinal products on a regular basis. éfithese regulatory changes and events could ¢igriability to form collaborations and our
ability to continue to commercialize our produesd if we fail to comply with any such new or maelif regulations and requirements it could
adversely affect our business, operating resulispanspects.

Our strategic business plan may not produce theeimied growth in revenue and operating income.

Our strategies include making significant investtaen sales and marketing programs to achieve tevgrowth and margin
improvement targets. If we do not achieve the etqukbenefits from these investments or otherwideéd@xecute on our strategic initiatives,
we may not achieve the growth improvement we agetang and our results of operations may be aeweedffected.

In addition, as part of our strategy for growth, mvay make acquisitions and enter into strategiarales such as joint ventures and
joint development agreements. However, we may aaiie to identify suitable acquisition candidatesnplete acquisitions or integr:
acquisitions successfully, and our strategic atignmay not prove to be successful. In this regamglisitions involve numerous risks,
including difficulties in the integration of the emtions, technologies, services and productseoéitijuired companies and the diversion of
management’s attention from other business concAttimugh we will endeavor to evaluate the rigkisdérent in any particular transaction,
there can be no assurance that we will properlgréaio all such risks. In addition, acquisitionsikcbresult in the incurrence of substantial
additional indebtedness and other expenses onténpially dilutive issuances of equity securiti€aere can be no assurance that difficulties
encountered with acquisitions will not have a matexdverse effect on our business, financial cibordiand results of operations.

We may have violated Israeli securities law.

We may have violated section 15 of the Israeli 88ea Law of 1968. Section 15 of the Israeli Sétes Law of 1968 requires the
filing of a prospectus with the Israel Securitiastiority and the delivery thereof to purchasersdnnection with an offer or sale of securities
to more than 35 parties during any 12 month peifdd.allegedly issued securities to more than 3Bstors during certain 12-month periods,
ending in October 2008. Our wholly-owned subsididngpireMD Ltd., a private company incorporatedienthe laws of the State of Israel,
applied for a no-action determination from the é@ecurity Authority on February 14, 2011 in coctian with the foregoing. To date, the
Israel Securities Authority has not responded spireMD Ltd.’s application for no-action determiitett and we are unable to predict when a
response will be received. The maximum penaltiesifdating section 15 of the Israeli SecuritiesrLaf 1968 are as follows: imprisonment of
5 years; a fine of up to approximately $317,00be@aid by management of the violating company;afide of up to approximately
$1,590,000 to be paid by the violating company, @imyhich penalties could result in a material adeeeffect on our operations. We believe
that it is unlikely that either we or any individwaill be subject to fines or other penalties agsult of these alleged violations.
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We will need to raise additional capital to meetrdausiness requirements in the future and such c@piraising may be costly or difficult to
obtain and could dilute stockholders’ ownership arests.

We will need to raise additional capital in theuii®t, which may not be available on reasonable temas all. For instance, we will
need to raise additional funds to accomplish thieang:

« developing MGuard Carotid, MGuard Peripheral andudf@ Coronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbableimand any additional
roducts;

. gursuing growth opportunities, including more ragighansion;

« acquiring complementary businesses;

« making capital improvements to improve our infrasture;

« hiring qualified management and key employees;

« developing new services, programming or products;

« responding to competitive pressures;

- complying with regulatory requirements such asngieg and registration; and

- maintaining compliance with applicable laws.

Any additional capital raised through the saleafity or equity backed securities may dilute stadilers’ ownership percentages and
could also result in a decrease in the market valweir equity securities.

The terms of any securities issued by us in futa@tal transactions may be more favorable to mastors, and may include
preferences, superior voting rights and the isseiafiovarrants or other derivative securities, whitdly have a further dilutive effect on the
holders of any of our securities then outstanding.

Furthermore, any additional debt or equity finagdiat we may need may not be available on ternmrddle to us, or at all. If we a
unable to obtain such additional financing on atinbasis, we may have to curtail our developmetivities and growth plans and/or be
forced to sell assets, perhaps on unfavorable temmish would have a material adverse effect onbasiness, financial condition and result
operations, and ultimately we could be forced 8zdntinue our operations and liquidate, in whicarg\t is unlikely that stockholders would
receive any distribution on their shares. Further may not be able to continue operating if we dogenerate sufficient revenues from
operations needed to stay in business.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in ping future capital financing, including investmduainking fees, legal fees,
accounting fees, securities law compliance feéstipg and distribution expenses and other costs.nvdly also be required to recognize non-
cash expenses in connection with certain secumt@essue, such as convertible notes and warrahish may adversely impact our financial
condition.

Risks Related to Operating in Israel

We anticipate being subject to fluctuations in caemcy exchange rates because we expect a substautidion of our revenues will be
generated in Euros and U.S. dollars, while a sigo#dnt portion of our expenses will be incurred indW Israeli Shekels

We expect a substantial portion of our revenuekbgilgenerated in U.S. dollars and Euros, whilgaificant portion of our expenses,
principally salaries and related personnel expensgmid in New Israeli Shekels, or NIS. As a iesue are exposed to the risk that the rate of
inflation in Israel will exceed the rate of devaioa of the NIS in relation to the Euro or the Udsllar, or that the timing of this devaluation
will lag behind inflation in Israel. Because inftai has the effect of increasing the dollar andoosts of our operations, it would therefore
have an adverse effect on our dollar-measuredtsestibperations. The value of the NIS, againstBhm, the U.S. dollar, and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other thichanges in Israel’s political and economic cmals. Any significant revaluation of the
NIS may materially and adversely affect our casiw§, revenues and financial condition. Fluctuationthe NIS exchange rate, or even
appearance of instability in such exchange rateldcadversely affect our ability to operate ouribass.

If there are significant shifts in the political, @nomic and military conditions in Israel and itsaighbors, it could have a material adver
effect on our business relationships and profitaibjl

Our principal executive offices and our key persrare located in Israel. Our business is diregffgcted by the political, economic
and military conditions in Israel and its neighb@sce the establishment of the State of Isra&b#B, a number of armed conflicts have
occurred between Israel and its Arab neighbordafeof hostility, varying in degree and intenshgs caused security and economic problem
in Israel. Although Israel has entered into peagaties with Egypt and Jordan, and various agreenveth the Palestinian Authority, there has
been a marked increase in violence, civil unredttaostility, including armed clashes, between ttaeSof Israel and the Palestinians, since
September 2000. The establishment in 2006 of argowvent in the Gaza Strip by representatives oHamas militant group has created
heightened unrest and uncertainty in the regiomith2006, Israel engaged in an armed conflict wilzbollah, a Shiite Islamist militia group
based in Lebanon, and in June 2007, there wascatatien in violence in the Gaza Strip. From Decent008 through January 2009 and a
in November and December 2012, Israel engaged arrand conflict with Hamas, which involved missteikes against civilian targets in
various parts of Israel and negatively affectedrnmss conditions in Israel. Recent political uprgs and social unrest in Syria are affecting its
political stability, which has led to the deteritioa of the political relationship between Syriadderael and have raised new concerns rega



security in the region and the potential for arroedflict. Similar civil unrest and political turberice is currently ongoing in many
countries in the region. The continued politicatébility and hostilities between Israel and itighbors and any future armed conflict, terrorist
activity or political instability in the region ctadiadversely affect our operations in Israel angeasely affect the market price of our shares of
common stock. In addition, several countries restitding business with Israel and Israeli compah@ been and are today subjected to
economic boycotts. The interruption or curtailmefitrade between Israel and its present tradingnpes could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Our operations could be disrupted as a result oétbbligation of certain of our personnel residing israel to perform military service.

Many of our executive officers and key employeesde in Israel and may be required to perform ahmiigary reserve duty.
Currently, all male adult citizens and permanesidents of Israel under the age of 40 (or oldepedeing on their position with the Israeli
Defense Forces reserves), unless exempt, are @digaperform military reserve duty annually ane subject to being called to active duty at
any time under emergency circumstances. Our opesatould be disrupted by the absence for a sagmifiperiod of one or more of our
officers or key employees due to military servigay such disruption could have a material adveffexton our business, results of operation:
and financial condition.

We may not be able to enforce covenants not-to-cetepunder current Israeli law.

We have non-competition agreements with many ofeouployees, most of which are governed by Israeli These agreements
generally prohibit our employees from competingwis or working for our competitors for a specifiggtiod following termination of their
employment. However, Israeli courts are reluctardriforce non-compete undertakings of former eng®#eyand tend, if at all, to enforce those
provisions for relatively brief periods of timeiiestricted geographical areas and only when thda@me has unique value specific to that
employer’s business and not just regarding thegsibnal development of the employee. Any suchilibato enforce non-compete covenants
may cause us to lose any competitive advantagétirestrom advantages provided to us by such canfigal information.

It may be difficult for investors in the United Stas to enforce any judgments obtained against usoy of our directors or officers

All of our assets are located outside the UnitedeStand we do not currently maintain a permanlecepf business within the Unit
States. In addition, three of our directors andtrobsur officers are nationals and/or residentsafntries other than the United States, and al
or a substantial portion of such persons’ assetéogated outside the United States. As a resuitay be difficult for investors to enforce
within the United States any judgments obtainedresgas or any of our nob-S. directors or officers, including judgmentsgioated upon th
civil liability provisions of the securities lawg the United States or any state thereof. Additigné& may be difficult to assert U.S. securities
law claims in actions originally instituted outsidethe United States. Israeli courts may refusledar a U.S. securities law claim because
Israeli courts may not be the most appropriaterfiarin which to bring such a claim. Even if an I$§raeurt agrees to hear a claim, it may
determine that the Israeli law, and not U.S. lagpplicable to the claim. Further, if U.S. lawdand to be applicable, certain content of
applicable U.S. law must be proved as a fact, wharhbe a time-consuming and costly process, andicenatters of procedure would still be
governed by the Israeli law. Consequently, you tmagffectively prevented from pursuing remediesenridlS. federal and state securities |
against us or any of our non-U.S. directors orceffs.

The tax benefits that are available to us require to continue meeting various conditions and maytbeminated or reduced in the future,
which could increase our costs and taxes.

The tax benefits that are available to us requireolcontinue meeting various conditions and matebminated or reduced in the
future, which could increase our costs and taxespite Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficiary Entsgfistatus by the Investment Center in the
Israeli Ministry of Industry Trade and Labor whiotade us eligible for tax benefits under the Isrbal for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments, 1959. In order to remain eligibletfar tax benefits of a “Beneficiary Enterprise”, me@st continue to meet certain conditions
stipulated in the Israeli Law for the Encouragenwmtapital Investments, 1959 and its regulati@ssamended, which may include, among
other things, making specified investments in fissdets and equipment, financing a percentagesé timvestments with our capital
contributions, filing certain reports with the Irstment Center, complying with provisions regardimgllectual property and the criteria set
forth in the specific certificate of approval isdugy the Investment Center or the Israel Tax Autholf we do not meet these requirements,
tax benefits could be cancelled and we could baired to refund any tax benefits that we receivethe past. Further, in the future, these tax
benefits may be reduced or discontinued. If thasdenefits are cancelled, our Israeli taxablernmeavould be subject to regular Israeli
corporate tax rates. The standard corporate taXoatisraeli companies in 2011 was 24% of theiakde income, was increased to 25% in 2
and remains at such a rate in 2013. In the futueemay not be eligible to receive additional tarddfis under the Israeli Law for the
Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959. Thwitextion or reduction of these tax benefits wounlck€ase our tax liability, which would
reduce our profits.
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Risks Related to Our Organization and Our Common Sick
We are subject to financial reporting and other reigements that place significant demands on our oesces.

On March 31, 2011, we became subject to reportinbodher obligations under the Securities Exchakgef 1934, as amended,
including the requirements of Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002. Section 404 requiresousohduct an annual management
assessment of the effectiveness of our internataisrover financial reporting and to obtain a nefiy our independent auditors addressing
these assessments. These reporting and othertaiiigalace significant demands on our managenaeintjnistrative, operational, internal
audit and accounting resources. Any failure to ma@ineffective internal controls could have a mateadverse effect on our business, oper:
results and stock price. Moreover, effective inéérontrol is necessary for us to provide religblancial reports and prevent fraud. If we
cannot provide reliable financial reports or previeaud, we may not be able to manage our busiageffectively as we would if an effective
control environment existed, and our business apdtation with investors may be harmed.

There are inherent limitations in all control systes, and misstatements due to error or fraud mayurcand not be detected.

The ongoing internal control provisions of Sectiii# of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require udéatify of material weaknesses
in internal control over financial reporting, whigha process to provide reasonable assuranceliegdhe reliability of financial reporting for
external purposes in accordance with accountimgfmies generally accepted in the United States.management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, daest expect that our internal controls and disalesiontrols will prevent all errors and all fra
A control system, no matter how well conceived apdrated, can provide only reasonable, not absasteirance that the objectives of the
control system are met. In addition, the desiga obntrol system must reflect the fact that theeer@source constraints and the benefit of
controls must be relative to their costs. Becatdigheoinherent limitations in all control systems, evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanciaud, if any, in our company have been detecté@s€ inherent limitations include the reali
that judgments in decision-making can be faulty tvad breakdowns can occur because of simple evrarsstakes. Further, controls can be
circumvented by individual acts of some persons;dijusion of two or more persons, or by managerogatride of the controls. The desigr
any system of controls is also based in part ugstain assumptions about the likelihood of futureres, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its statedgjaader all potential future conditions. Over timecontrol may be inadequate because of
changes in conditions, such as growth of the compaincreased transaction volume, or the degremwipliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Because of inhereitalions in a coseffective control system, misstatements due torerdéraud may occur ar
not be detected.

In addition, discovery and disclosure of a matesiehkness, by definition, could have a materiakasky impact on our financial
statements. Such an occurrence could discouratgrceustomers or suppliers from doing businesk w#, cause downgrades in our future
debt ratings leading to higher borrowing costs atfieict how our stock trades. This could in turnategly affect our ability to access public
debt or equity markets for capital.

Because we became public by means (‘reverse merger,” we may not be able to attract #hgention of major brokerage firms.

There may be risks associated with us becominggthobugh a “reverse merger” with a shell compahiyhough the shell company
did not have recent or past operations or assetsvarperformed a due diligence review of the stfhpany, there can be no assurance th:
will not be exposed to undisclosed liabilities déag from the prior operations of the shell compa8ecurities analysts of major brokerage
firms and securities institutions may also not jmlewcoverage of us because there were no brdaiers who sold our stock in a public offe
that would be incentivized to follow or recommehd purchase of our common stock. The absence bfresearch coverage could limit
investor interest in our common stock, resultingléereased liquidity. No assurance can be givareitablished brokerage firms will, in the
future, want to cover our securities or conduct segondary offerings or other financings on ourdtfeh
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Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd, which could result in substantial losses favestors.

The market price of our common stock has been sfiklely to continue to be highly volatile and cddiluctuate widely in response to
various factors, many of which are beyond our ainincluding the following:

« technological innovations or new products and se/by us or our competitors;

« additions or departures of key personnel,

« sales of our common stock, particularly under agistration statement for the purposes of sellmgather securities, including
management share

« limited availability of freely-tradable “unrestraxd” shares of our common stock to satisfy purcloaders and demand;

« our ability to execute our business plan;

« operating results that fall below expectations;

« loss of any strategic relationship;

« industry developments;

« economic and other external factors; and

« period-to-period fluctuations in our financial réisu

In addition, the securities markets have from ttméme experienced significant price and volumetiliations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &maarket fluctuations may also significantly affédet market price of our common stock.

We may be subject to penny stock rules which widlka the shares of our common stock more difficudtgell.

We may be subject to the Securities and Exchangen@ssion’s “penny stockfules. Penny stocks generally are equity securitits
a per share price of less than $5.00. The penmk stdes require broker-dealers to deliver a stattided risk disclosure document prepared by
the Securities and Exchange Commission that previdfermation about penny stocks and the naturdere of risks in the penny stock
market. The broker-dealer must also provide théoooner with current bid and offer quotations for renny stock, the compensation of the
broker-dealer and its salesperson, and monthlyet®tatements showing the market value of eachypstock held in the customeraccount
The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-deatet salesperson compensation information musives ¢o the customer orally or in writing
prior to completing the transaction and must begito the customer in writing before or with thetouner’s confirmation.

In addition, the penny stock rules require thabiptd a transaction the broker-dealer must makeeaial written determination that the
penny stock is a suitable investment for the pwsehand receive the purchasenritten agreement to the transaction. The petogksules ar
burdensome and may reduce purchases of any offesimg) reduce the trading activity for shares ofammmon stock. To the extent our share:s
of common stock are subject to the penny stoclsriles holders of such shares of common stock madyitfmore difficult to sell their
securities.

There has been a limited market for our common dt@nd we cannot ensure investors that an active k&irfor our common stock will be
sustained,

There has been limited trading in our common stowk there can be no assurance that an active gratinket in our common stock
will be maintained. Due to the illiquidity, the nkat price may not accurately reflect our relatiadue. There can be no assurance that then
be an active market for our shares of common stdbler now or in the future. Because our commoaoksi® so thinly traded, a large block of
shares traded can lead to a dramatic fluctuatidhdrshare price and investors may not be abigualhte their investment in us at all or at a
price that reflects the value of the businessdufitéon, our common stock currently trades on tHeC@ulletin Board, which generally lacks
liquidity, research coverage and institutional istee following of a national securities exchande lihe NYSE MKT, the New York Stock
Exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market. While we lzgogtied to list our common stock on a national sies exchange, we cannot assure yol
that our common stock will be accepted for listotgany national securities exchanges or that wemndintain compliance with all of the
requirements for our common stock to remain lisfetitionally, if our common stock is accepted fisting on a national securities exchange,
there can be no assurance that trading of our canstozk on such market will be sustained or dekdrab
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Delaware law and our corporate charter and bylawantain anti-takeover provisions that could delay or discourag&eover attempts that
stockholders may consider favorabl

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shafgreferred stock in one or more series anitthé voting powers, preferences
and other rights and limitations of the preferremtk. Accordingly, we may issue shares of prefestedk with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributionsligmidation or dissolution, or that may otherwagversely affect the voting or other rights of
the holders of common stock. Issuances of prefetack, depending upon the rights, preferencesdasijnations of the preferred stock, may
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemtinchange of control, even if that change of admhight benefit our stockholders.

Offers or availability for sale of a substantial maber of shares of our common stock may cause thiegof our common stock to decline.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our comstock in the public market could harm the magtete of our common stock a
make it more difficult for us to raise funds thrbufyiture offerings of common stock. As of Februdy2013, there were 4,432,673 shares o
common stock issuable upon the conversion of otstanding convertible debentures and the exerdiserooutstanding warrants, all of which
are currently registered for resale. In addititveré are 17,235,692 shares of our common stockrtlyrsaleable under Rule 144. The
availability of these shares of our common stoakésale in the public market has the potentiaiaiose the supply of our common stock to
exceed investor demand, thereby decreasing the pfiocur common stock.

In addition, the fact that our stockholders, wartasiders and debenture holders can sell substantieLints of our common stock in
the public market, whether or not sales have oeduor are occurring, could make it more difficult tis to raise additional financing through
the sale of equity or equity-related securitiethim future at a time and price that we deem redderta appropriate.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the future.adAsesult, any return on investment may be limitixdthe value of our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on ourroon stock in the foreseeable future. The paymedividends on our common
stock will depend on our earnings, financial coieditand other business and economic factors abaand of directors may consider relevant.
If we do not pay dividends, our common stock mayelss valuable because a return on an investmenirinommon stock will only occur if
our stock price appreciates.

Risks Related to our Convertible Debentures

Our obligations to the holders of our convertibleldentures are secured by all of our assets, soefdgfault on those obligations, the
convertible debenture holders could foreclose orr assets.

The holders of our convertible debentures havecaritg interest in all of our assets and thosewfsubsidiaries. As a result, if we

default under our obligations to the convertibleelgure holders, the convertible debenture holdeutd foreclose on their security interests
and liquidate some or all of these assets, whichidvbarm our business, financial condition and ltesaf operations.
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Our convertible debentures and the associated siims purchase agreement contain covenants thatlddimit our financing options and
liquidity position, which would limit our ability ® grow our business.

The terms of our convertible debentures could mgative consequences to us, such as:

« we may be unable to obtain additional financinfuted working capital, operating losses, capitalenditures or acquisitions on terms
acceptable to us, or at ¢

« we may be unable to refinance our indebtednessromstacceptable to us, or at all; and

« we may be more vulnerable to economic downturndliaritiour ability to withstand competitive presssr

Additionally, covenants in our convertible debeptiand the associated securities purchase agresnperse operating and financial
restrictions on us. These restrictions prohibiirait our ability, and the ability of our subsidies, to, among other things:

« pay cash dividends to our stockholders;

« redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire more tld@mainimis number of shares of our common stoakoonmon stock equivalents;
« incur additional indebtedness;

« permit liens on assets or conduct sales of assets;

« cease making public filings under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended,;

« engage in transactions with affiliates; and

« amend our charter documents in a way that woulerizdly and adversely affect any holder of our centible debentures.

These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional financing, withstand downturns in ousimess or take advantage of
business opportunities. Moreover, additional detarfcing we may seek may contain terms that inctadee restrictive covenants, may reqt
repayment on an accelerated schedule or may ingibee obligations that limit our ability to grow obusiness, acquire needed assets, or tak
other actions we might otherwise consider approgpiia desirable.

The conversion of our convertible debentures ane texercise of the warrants issued to the purchasgfreur convertible debentures would
have a dilutive impact on our existing stockholders

As of February 4, 2013, there were 1,783,487 shafreemmon stock underlying our convertible debezgland 913,944 shares of
common stock underlying warrants that were issogalitchasers and placement agents in connectibrtiiétissuance of the convertible
debentures, for a total of 2,697,431shares of comstack. If and when issued, these additional 248 shares of common stock will equal
approximately 12.7% of our then outstanding shafemmmon stock, and would immediately dilute ourrent stockholders in terms of
ownership percentage and voting power. The terntiseofonvertible debentures and related warrantgagoprovisions that restrict the amount
of shares a holder can receive upon conversiomercise to 4.99% of the then outstanding numbehafes of our common stock. However,
these restrictions do not prevent the holders fseiting some of their holdings and then receividdigonal shares. In this way, the holders
could sell more than these limits while never haddinore than the limits. As a result, even withrégrictions, the holders of these convertible
debentures and warrants could ultimately convettexercise, and then sell, the full amount issuapten conversion and exercise of the
convertible debentures and warrants, respectiuglyhich case our current stockholders would sutfferfull amount of dilution.

The holders of our convertible debentures mightdigle to exert substantial influence over us in teeent that Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. ceases to
remain our chairman.

Under the terms of the securities purchase agregpuesuant to which our convertible debentures vgetd, if Sol J. Barer, Ph.D.
ceases to serve as our chairman due to Dr. Bas=ignation following a material adverse changgnécondition of Dr. Barer or any member
of Dr. Barer’'s immediate family or the vote or weit consent of independent stockholders, we woeldthuired to appoint two persons to our
board of directors designated by Genesis Capitaishds LLC, the investment advisor to our lead stees in the convertible debenture
offering, and support the election of such persontd the convertible debentures are either repaiconverted in full. In addition, in the event
that Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairmaanfpother reason while the convertible debenture®atstanding, it would be an event of
default under the convertible debentures, whicHdcoesult in the acceleration of our convertibl®eetures at the election of the holders of
60% of the outstanding principal of the convertitdbentures, an amount that Genesis Capital AdvIS0€ presently controls. As a result,
Genesis Capital Advisors LLC, or its assigns, hiteepotential to exert substantial influence ouarmanagement and governance in the evel
Dr. Barer ceases to serve as our chairman andlagyexert such influence in a manner that is nosistent with the best interests of our
common stockholders.
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We may default upon our obligations under our comtible debentures.

The holders of our convertible debentures may requs to redeem our convertible debentures aftesl@c 5, 2013 or upon the
occurrence of an event of a default under our cdiibe debentures for 112% of the then outstangirgcipal amount, plus all accrued inter:
In the event that we are required to redeem sonadl of our convertible debentures, we may not hewféicient resources to do so and we may
have to seek additional debt or equity financingdeer the costs of redeeming our convertible dielses. Any additional debt or equity
financing that we may need may not be availableeams favorable to us, or at all. Because our akihigs under our convertible debentures
secured by a security interest in substantiallpftiur assets and properties, if we cannot repaybligations under our convertible
debentures, the holders of our convertible debestaray have claims against, and ultimately maycfose upon and take possession of,
substantially all of our assets and propertiesuich an event, the holders of our convertible dieives would have control of us.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causesdéport to be signed on its ber
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INSPIREMD, INC.

Date: February 4, 2013 By: /s/ Alan W. Milinazzo
Name:Alan W. Milinazzo
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

By: /s/ Craig Shore
Name:Craig Shore
Title: Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and
Treasure!
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

10.1

10.2

31.1*

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

101**

Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Dece28b@010, by and among InspireMD Ltd., Saguaro Ress, Inc., and the
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatbmréto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16. 5aguaro Resources, |
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissianJanuary 5, 201

Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, datedidey 24, 2011 (incorporated by reference to BxRil2 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiampril 6, 2011

Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreemaet tMarch 25, 2011 (incorporated by referencextalit 2.3 to Current
Report on Form-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 6, 2011

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponatincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 tor€nt Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiopril 1, 2011)

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated teyerce to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Forid 8led with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 1, 2

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Redt&ertificate of Incorporation (incorporated byarsnce to Exhibit 3.1 to
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarDecember 21, 201

First Amendment to License Agreement, dateaf &ctober 20, 2012, by and among Svelte Medigateésns, Inc.,
InspireMD, Inc. and InspireMD Ltd. (incorporated taference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report onnkr@&¢K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October@R).

Second Amendment to the InspireMD, Inc. Amenaied Restated 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan (incorpedsby reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Fori-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarDecember 26, 201

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawot $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from the Company’'si§terly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedember 31, 2012,
formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportingigaage), (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance SHagtSpndensed

Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) CosddrnConsolidated Statements of Cash Flows, arttiéu)otes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statem

* Filed herewith.

** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, theshatctive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deknw filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendesidaemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise are not subjelhibity under those sections.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Alan W. Milinazzo, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notain any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to the
period covered by this repori

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of ogerstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstaemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportiag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and have

a.

designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatiitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjpl

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presénthib report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in théstesnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; ar

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(sydal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

February 4, 2013 s/ Alan W. Milinazzc

Alan W. Milinazzo
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Craig Shore, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notain any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to the
period covered by this repori

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of ogerstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstaemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportiag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and have

a.

designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatiitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjpl

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presénthib report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in théstesnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; ar

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(sydal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisagttifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

February 4, 2013 /s/ Craig Short

Craig Shore
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-€@1)the quarter ended December 31, 2012 of Insfiixelnc. (the “Company”). I, Alan
W. Milinazzo, the Chief Executive Officer of the @pany, certify that, based on my knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@{(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoAd 934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Form QCkairly presents, in all material respects, tmaficial condition and results of operation

the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: February 4, 2013 By: s/ Alan W. Milinazzc

Name: Alan W. Milinazzo
Title:  Chief Executive Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctti@ns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitké 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdreRQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of tiompany, whether made before or after the datmheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-€@1)the quarter ended December 31, 2012 of Insfiirelnc. (the “Company”). I, Craig
Shore, the Chief Financial Officer and Principaildicial Officer of the Company, certify that, basedmy knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@{(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoAd 934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Form QCkairly presents, in all material respects, tmaficial condition and results of operation

the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: February 4, 2013 By: /s/ Craig Short

Name: Craig Shore
Title:  Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctti@ns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdreRQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securkirshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of tiompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




